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FIRST DAY 

January 16, 1963 
  

CHALRMAN: The meeting of the Ways and Means Committee will now come to 
order: 

Gentlemen of the Committee; this is the opening session of 
the hearing on Senate Bill No. 1 entitled, "Licenses, License Fees, 
Taxes, and Customs Duties" referred to this Committee. I am sure you 
all have copies of this Bill, and I am doubly sure that you are all .fa- 

-mMmiliar with it. We will go through the entire Bill discussing it sec- 
tion by section. You may ask questions any time you wish. This hear- 
ing will be conducted in accordance with Rules of Procedures of the 
Senate as well as Rules of this Committee. We will take our time as we 
want to hear from all those who are interested to testify for, or 
against this Bill. Everyone who wishes to appear, for himself, or to 
represent a business, organization, or industry will be given the op- 

portunity to do so. 

Invitations will also be extended to those who may have facts, know- 
ledge, or experience that will assist us. In other words, this Commit- 
tee will do all it can to obtain facts and information so that it may 
arrive at a fair, and equitable conclusion that will benefit this ter- 

ritory. 

Gentlemen, I must caution you to keep an open mind. Listen to all the 
facts and examine them carefully. As you know, there will be those who 
oppose this Bill, and they will make all efforts to influence you; also 
there will be those who support this. Bill, and they will do all they 
can to get you to approve it. After all the facts are in, and after 
you have sifted and weighed them, I ask you to be independent in making 

your decision. 

We have with us today Mr. Sigler who will comment generally on the 
Bill. Mr. Sigler is well known to us as he was with us last year 4s 
Counsel to the Legislature. He comes again to us this time to help us 
in the same position. It is my pleasure to present Mr. Sigler. 

MR. SIGLER: Thank you Mr. Chairman. I think that's a good way to pro- 
  

ceed because by general discussion I can give you a background, and I. 

think it will make it easier to understand the specific sections. 

The Title is divided into several Chapters. The First Chapter is 
Licenses. This Chapter is not different from your present law in any 
material way. I have taken the provisions of your Code that are in 
effect right now and have restated them with just a few changes. The 
changes are not very significant. I1'11 tell you what they are: Nobody 

can engage in a business in American Samoa without first obtaining a 

license to do business. That is the law today. There's no change in 

that provision. The major change is in the License Fees; which are 

found in Chapter Two. Under your present law, there is a long list of 

license fees, and they vary from one dollar to 64 to $250. What I 

have done at the Governor's request, this is also in accordance with 

the advise of the Treasury expert who was down here last fall, is to 

reduce that long list of license fees to five. And the fees listed, 

starting at two hundred fifty dollars for a beer tavern, are the same 

fees that are now in the book. There is no difference in those fees. 
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The difference comes from the ones that I have omitted, There is a 

long list of things I have omitted, and for all of those this Bill pro- 

vides one fee of twenty five dollars. That is a. little more than the 

fee in the Code right now for some of those businesses. I don't happen 

to have the old Code with me but I remember a few. Some of the ‘icen- 

ses were $12; this would make it twenty five dollars. The reason the 

Governor suggested that change is that we are’not aware of any reason 

why a photographic shop should pay one fee, and a car repair shop 

another fee, They should all pay the same fee. There is some question 

as to picking what is reasonable and it was the feeling of the Treasury 

man who was down here that twenty five dollars a year is a reasonable 

fee for anybody who is doing business, Now that is the major change in 

the fee schedule for doing business, 

There are some other fees that are not for doing business, They are 

fees for special things like driving a car (that's a driver's permit) 
or a fee for operating a bus. The fees that are listed there in your 

Bill are the same fees that are in the old Code, with one exception. 
IT hone I haven't forgotten other exceptions, The new one is a fee for 

a motor bicycle, or a motor scooter, There is no fee now for a motor 

scooter, You did not have them a few years ago, They are a new thing 

here on the island. The fee suggestion is $7,50, which is just half of 

the fee that is charged for an automobile which is $15.00, Now that is 

about the sum and substance of the first two chapters. 

The next chapter, the Income Tax, I think is the most important chapter 

in the whole Bill. Let me explain it. At the present time there is no 

Income Tax in American Samoa, No Income Tax ‘at all. Your taxes now 

are the head tax, customs duties, export duties, business license tax, 

which is about the same thing as a sales tax, a land tax whieh is not 

"very effective; and I am told that there are very few collections under 

the land tax. Those are the principal ones and that's your present 

system. The Governor's proposal is that we abolish the export tax; 

that we reduce the import duties on some of the necessities of life, 

such as food, and that we raise most of the revenue that is now raised 

by what I've just mentioned — by means of Income Tax, The reason for 

that is that income is a measure of ability to pay. By that I mean if 

a man has a salary and receives cash in hand we can judge how much he 

is able to nay in the way of taxes, by how much salary he gets. If he 

gets a big salary he should pay a big tax. If he gets a very small sa-- 

lary he should pay a very small tax or perhaps no tax, But the tax he 

pays ought to depend upon how much money he makes. That's the princi- 

ple of the Income Tax, 

This Bill adopts as a SamoanIncome Tax the exact law that is.in force 

in the United States with respect to inc>me, with a few changes. The 

changes are tailored or designed to meet the needs of Samoa. But in 

general this Bill, if you approve it in the Fono,will adopt as a Sa- 

moan Tax the same system that is applied by the United States with res- 

pect to all the citizens of the United States. That tax works in’this 

way. Let me divide it into two parts: (1) The tax on individuals, and 

(2) the tax on corporation.. ‘ 

You all understand what I mean bv acorporation,, I assume, A Corpora— 

tion is an. artificial business organization which is not an individual 
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person like you or I, I like to talk in different terms with respeet 
to the individual such as yous and the Corporation which is a business 
organization, 

First, I should like to talk about the Income Tax on the individual, 
that is, all of the Samoan people, The Federal plan which this Bill 
adopts applies a graduated tax, By that I mean it increasingly starts 
at 20% of the taxable income, (I'm going to explain what is taxable 
income) and as the individual earns more money the rate goes up, It 
gf0es up very steeply, so that anyone earning a million dollars, I doubt 
there's anyone in Samoa who earns that much, but in the United States 
there are a few, anyone who earns a million dollars will have to pay 
90% of it in tax, Now, that's not going to apply here and I don't want 
to mislead you, but the system is a graduated tax that increases with 
the amount of money earned, Now that's a tax on the-taxable income, 
In order to determine taxable income, you do this: assume I'm a Samoan 
living here in Samoa, if the government pays me a salary of $100.00 a 
month, $1200.00 a year, that would be my income, But I would be en- 
titled to a deduction from that income before figuring my tax. The de— 
duction is $600,00 for each member of my family, If I had a wife and 
three children and myself, that would be five people and the allowance 
is $600.00 per person, so that means the deduction would be $3000,00, 
That is five times 600, There would be no tax at all under that 
system, My salary of $1200.00 would be less than the total exemptions, 
and I would not be taxed, On the other hand if I earned $5000.00 a 
year, if the government paid me $5000,00 a year to work hére, and 1 
have the same exemptions, then my exemption will be $3000.00 which will 
be deducted from my total wage of $5000.00, The $2000,00 would be 
subject to tax and that $2000,00 would be taxed at 20%. That's the 
general plan. The point I want to exphasize for you is that the plan 
has a meaning only if the wages of the individual are higher than his 
family exemptions. If the wage is not higher than the family exemp- 
tions, then he doesn't have to pay a tax under that system, 

To take care of that situation the Bill provides an alternate tax, a 
tax that would apply instead to the one I just described, That alter— 
native is 24 of the wages earned by any one person, That would be the 
tax that applies to most Samoans, Anyone working for a salary, like 
working for the Government of American Samoa, who is paid $1500.00 a 
year, then he would have to pay a tax of 2% of $1500.00 and that is 
$30,00, Thirty dollars a year is just a little more than 50¢ a week, 
That's what the tax would amount to for a person earning $1500,00, 
That's a very modest tax, a very low tax, And that's the tax that will 
apply to anybody earning a wage unless the wage pets up somewhere 
around $3000.CO°a month. ‘Anyone earnihe less.than that will pay the tax 
I am describing, which is 2% of the wage, And I emphasize, if the wage 
earner is getting $1500.00 a year, the tax on that person will be some- 
where around 50¢ each week, That's most people, However, Mr, Flannery 
earns more money than that, and he will have to pay more than 2% of his 
Salary because he earns more, He will have to pay the graduated’ tax, 
The graduated tax goes up very steeply. I don't know. whether Mr. 
Flannery cares to tell you what his tax is, but I'l] tell you what 
mine is. I have to pay $3000.00 tax every year-to the United States. 
That kind of a tax is not reasonable for the low salary person, But 
for the higher salary person it is very reasonable. 
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This tax is going to fall hardest on the few individuals in Samoa who 
earn a lot of money. Those people have never paid tax to Samoa or to 
the United States. They're going to have to pay a tax now for the 
first time. I think it's fair. Have I talked too long Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman I would like tc emphasize for your Committee that the 2% 
tax applies only to people who get a wage or salary. It does not apply 
for example to a Matai who does not work for anybody but merely runs 
his plantation and sells the produce from his plantation. That Matai 
is not earning a wage and this 2% pax does not apply to hin. However, 
if the Matai has a cash income if he sells the produce from his pvlan- 
tation and gets a cash income that is high enough to bring him within 
this graduated scale such as I have described, and that will apply only 
somewhere up in between $300.00 or $4000.00, which means if he has that 
much income he will be subject to the graduated tax, But if he does 
not have that much income and does not work for a wage, this system 
will not apply to him at all. 

There is one other group of people to whom the 2% wage tax will not 
apply, and that is the individual person who has his own business. He 
doesn't work for a wage but runs his own business. I suspect some of 
you Senators have your own business and work for yourselves. In that 
case you will be in the same position as I have just described. You 
don't have a wage, Therefore there's no 2% wage tax; but you pay a tax 
only if your cash income amounts to more than your family exemption, 
which I indicated is $600.00 for each member of the family. Those are 
the two qualifications I want to emphasize. That isn't completely fair 
but it is the fairest thing we could think of because we cannot apply a 
system that is too complicated in an area like this and expect to make 
it work, It's going to be hard enough to make this one work. If we 
try to apply a more detailed bookkeeping system to the plantation ope~ 
rator who doesn't sell his produce it will be almost an impossible tax, 

Now one word about the merchants on the island. I'm told that most of 
the stores are run by individuals: rather than by corporations. I be- 
lieve there is only one corporation here, according to Mr. Flannery. 
One Corporation engaged in the retail trade. The merchants who are 
running their stores as individuals will be subject to the graduated 
scale cf tax that I have described earlier. Now let me repeat ite. 
The merchant will operate his business for a year, any year, and at 
the end of that year he will, according to his books, figure out how 
much profit he made on running his store, This is the same thing that 
is done in the United States. Every merchant who runs a store there, 
at the end of the year figures up how much profit he has made. If 
that profit is within the graduated scale that I have described to you 
then the merchant will have to pay the tax on the basis of the 
graduated scale. He'll be subject to the same plan I have just des~ 
cribed to you. Let me repeat that, If the merchant has a wife and 
three children, he has five people in his family. He will have five 
exemptions at $600.00 each exemption, That means he has $3000.00 that 
is tax free. Anything he makes above $3000.00 if he has five exemp- 
tions, will be taxable and the tax is the graduated scale. If the 
merchant on the other hand instead of having five exemptions, has a 
large family - let's say he has eight children who are minors now. I 
don't mean children who are married and living somewhere else. But if 
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he has eight small children living with him in his house as part of 
his immediate family and are dependent upon him for their food and 
Shelter; if he has eight children like that and a wife and himmelf , 
that's a total number of ten, He would have ten exemptions at $600.00 
each, which will be $6000.00. He will not be taxed on that first 

- $6000.00, He'll be taxed on all the anounts he makes in addition to 
the $6000.00. That is the system that is applied in tHe‘ United States 
and is the system that the Governor has recommended to be that you 
apply here, 

The financial records that we mve indicates, as I said a moment ago, 
that most people in American Samoa will pay the 2% tax and not the 
graduated scale, 

Let me make one point clear. I am talking about the profits from a 
business and not their zross sales. That is if a store sells a lot of 
merchandise every month, it isn't the sale price for that merchandise; 
it is only his profits after he has fizured out how much it cost hin 
to buy the merchandise, how much it cost him to pay his clerical 
help, and to pay his lights and rent, all of his costs, It is what 
that is left over as profit that is taxed and it is taxed then only if 
its exceeds his personal exemptions. I believe that about summarizes 
the situation for the individual . .. it is, to say it again, the tax 
is Based upon the amount of wage that is received if a man works for a 
wage. If he works for a wage, it is 2%.If he does not work for a wage 
then it is the amount of profit he earns in conducting his own  busi- 
ness. In that event it is not the 2% of his profit but it is the eras 
duated scale on his profits, 

Now, if that's clear I think I would like to go on. to the corporation 
tax. Mr, Flannery has asked me whether this lew would apply to some- 
body, such as a Matai who is engaged in agriculture and sells 1 his 
agricultural products. Say he sells copra or he sells his coconuts ‘or 
bananas . sells them for money. If he sells them for money that in- 
come is taxable in the same way a business is taxable, If he ears 
enough profit out of it to get within the graduated scale, that ‘will 
be taxable, But that will only hanpen if he has a rather high ircome,. 
It won't happen to very many people in American Samoa. Shall I go on 
to corporation tax? Mr. Chairman I have one other thought I should 
like to give you before I go on to the corporation; and that is,I want 
to be sure everybody wderstands the number of people who now pay tax 
and the number of people who now do not pay tax. I think that's ‘ime 
portant becuase it is unfair to some people and it is a favortism for 
others. At the present time anybody who works for the Government of 
American Samoa, and that is a large number of people, there's ~ about 
2,000 people that work for the Government of American Samoa. Some of 
them have to pay the Income Tax that I have just’ described to: you; 
others do not, Now the difference is whether they!re citizens of the 
United States or whether they are American nationals. If they are 
citizens of the United States they have to pay the Federal Tax; if 
they are nationals, not citizens, they do not pay the Federal Tax. 
They do not pay any tax. You could have this situation. You could 
have a school teacher from the States down here hired to teach school 
by contract; you could have a Samoan National hired to teach school, 
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and they could both be paid the same Salary. The stateside teacher 
would have to pay a tax and the Samoan teacher would not - I. think 
that's unfair. Now the other unfairness is this, A citizen of the 
United States who works for the American Government has to pay a_ tax, 
A citizen of the United States who works for 4 corporation here, such 
as Van Camps, does not have to pay a _ tax, Again, that's unfair. 
Then in the last category, most Samoans do not have to pay any tax at 
all. One of the good features of this Bill, in my judgement, is 
that it puts everybody in the same boat; Everybody pays the same 
kind of a tax, ff I have to pava tax, you have got to pay the 
same tax if you make as much money as I do, If one person makes a 
small amount of money and is taxed on that, everybody else who 
makes that same amount of money is going to be taxed the same-way, 
I think that's a fair thing to do, but it is not the system now. 
Right now some people pay and some don't, 

Now I shall go on to the Corporation Tax, Under the United States 
law, all corporations doing business in the United States pay in 
general 52% of their profits as tax, That means that if a cor- 
porations earns a $100.00 in profits it pays $52.00 of that $100.00 
to the government, Now bear in mind that's a tax on profits. Pro~ 
fits are what's left over after you bought all your merchandise 
and paid all your salaries, Tye 38 not’ a taxon: the money 
that goes in to running the corporation, ab. 38° the. profit 
that's left over after the expenses of the business have all been 
paid. Now, very simply stated,the proposal before you, the Bill 
before the Fono would apply that same rule to corporations that are 
doing business in American Samoa. It is the same rule that appliss 
to a corporation doing business in the United States. IP that Cor— 
poration is a United States Corporation, then the rule is the same 
as that the corporation is accustomed to in the United States, It 
will pay here to Samoa a tax that is exactly the same as a tax it 
would pay in the United States if it were doing business in the 
United States, 

That's about all I need to say on the subject of the Corporation Tax, 
other than to indicate that the law is very complicated. .I ‘do not 
believe it would be worth your time to go through all the many; de- 
tails, I brought with me the hook. This is the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1954 which applies in the United States, All these are the laws 
that apply to income in the United States, You are adopting a portion 
of this law that applies to income in American Samoa. Mr, Logo, I 
think perhaps it will be well now for me to run through not section by 
section but tell you how the Bill is organized so that when you look 
at the individual sections you will see how it fits into the pattern, 
If you look at Section 18,0403, that section does just one thing, it 
adopts as Samoan law the provisions of the United States law that re- 
late to income. The laws in this book that relate to income are 
adopted as Samoan laws; it imposes a Samoan Tax that is exactly the 
same as the tax imposed in the United States by the United States 
law. When you have done that, that is when you have adopted this 
section, you have then adopted a Samoan Income Tax law. It is ndt 
a United States law anymore, It is a Samoan law,  



Now if you look at Section 18.0402, that's the next section, that sec- 
tion amends the Samoan Income Tax Law which has just been adopted, 
Section one adopts the United States law as Samoan Income Tax Law and 
then this Section 18,0402 amends that law to make it fit the special 
circumstances here in Samoa, And all that which goes on for many pages 
is an amendment of the Samoan Income Tax Law that you have just 
adopted, 

I'm sorry that the bill is as complicated as it is, but I do want to 
assure you that that one section on tax on wages is the major change in 
the law. And I have explained the reason for it as most Samoans work 
for such a small wage and that it would not be fair. And you wouldn't 
get any income if you used the other system. So, for tax only, this is 
the one big change in the Income Tax Law as is adopted from the United 
States, 

The rest of the Bill consists of technical amendments. That is, amend- 
ments designed to fit the language into the stvle of the statute. They 
are perfecting amendments, They do not make changes to the substance 
but are technical to accomplish the result that I have been trying to 
describe, 

I want to make one point, Mr. Chairman, and then I am at your pleasure 
to go through the Bill in any way you want to. The point I want to 
make is, under this Bill all the money raised by taxes goes to the 
Samoan Treasury. It does not go into the United States Treasury. That 
is quite a big improvement because right now, under the present law, 
the income taxes that are collected from American citizens fo to the 

United States, They don't come here. But this Bill is drawn so that 

money that has been going to the United States will come back to Samoa 
and go into the Samoan treasury. 

That's all I shall say at the moment about Income Tax. I shall just 
mention the other two chapters in the Bill and you can question me 

at your pleasure... The next chaptcr in the Bill is called General . Pro- 
visions, I won't stop on that. Chapter six however is called Customs 

Duties. That is the chapter that amends the present customs duties. 
It amends the present custom duties by lowering some of them and in- 

creasing some of them. The net effect, however, the total amount of 
money collected by taxes, will be about the same. They will not be 
collected from the same things. That is, the change in some duties 
upwards and the change in some duties down, the total amount of money 
collected will be about the same. Some of the changes in the duty 
list I thought it might be worth mentioning to you is, the duty is re- 
moved altogether~repealed from foods ; both food for people and food to 
feed animals. All food is entered duty free, 

Another important change in the duty is to exemnt from all duties raw 
materials brought into American Samoa to be manufactured or processed 

into something else. That is, the raw material that industry will 
use. That raw material will not’ be taxed when imported into the 
island but the profits from the manufacturing process will be taxed, 
The raw material when it comes in is not taxed but if the company 
makes a profit from its business, that profit will be taxed under in- 
come. Mr. Logo, that's the end of my general explanation of the Bill 
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and I'll be glad to answer any other question your committee wishes me 
to answer, 

CHATRMAN: On Section 18,0401, If this Section is approved by the 
Fono, that means the Law in this book here will apply here? 

  

MRe SIGLER: They will be Samoan Law —- you are adopting that as the 

Samoan Income Tax Act, 
  

CHAIRMAN: How then can, on this Special Session, the members of the 
Legislature understand those United States laws? 

  

MR. SIGLER: Chief Logo, I sympathize with your question, and I showtld 
say that the members of the United States Conrress in Washington 
have exactly the same problem, The Congressman in Washington 
never tries to read all of these laws seetion by section, The 
Congressman has a staff — this Committee Staff, they rely upon to 

explain -to them what the law says, and its major provisions, But 
they don't try to go through and read every word of it. That's 
because this law is written for lawyers. It's a type of thing 
that's highly technical, highly complicated, and it is really de- 
Signed for the lawyers to read. 

  

May I make one more comment. I think the Committee should under- 
stand very clearly the major provisions which I've been outlining 
I think we ought to go through them again, perhaps two or ‘three 
times, 1 «think the, Committee ought to understand the reneral 

framework of the Bill. “That is, it is a simple matter, You do 
want a 24 taxon wares or do you not want a 24 tax on wages, 
There are a lot of words in here about it, but if you just tell 
me which way you want it then I can write it that wav. If we try 
to go through it and explain where each one of these provisions 
goes in this book, I'll be lost and so will you, 

OPNATOR FAIIVAE: I was particularly interested on that exemptian part. 
Is it up to the Fono to fix an exemption limitation? We under— 
stand that the exemption in the United States law is -$600.00, 

There is no exemption here in this section, 

  

MR. SIGLER: The exemption will be the same. That is $600.00. That's 
the reason for the 2% wage tax. The wage tax will get all Samoans 
who work for a wage. It's the people in Samoa — not many — ~ who 
have a large income that would be subject to this exemption, and 
the $600,00 figure would apply. 

  

The administration of this law will not be difficult. Let me 
sketch roughly how that will work, Every person in Samoa who 
works for a wage will be asked to fill out a piece of paper called 

the Withholding Certificate. The Government of American Samoa 
uses that form right now. All the Samoan will do is to indicate 
how much wages he expects to earn during the year, Then there's 
a table right here. All Mr. Flannery's office will have to do 
when those forms come in to him, so far as the government is con- 
corned, is to look at the form and see whether the individual is 
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going to earn enough money to be on that table, at He 4S cCROt) 
then he deducts 2% from his wages and that is his tax. That's all 
there:is to. .4t for Wim, He will be told how much tax is deducted, 
But that deduction of 24 from his salary is the total thing; 
that's all he is taxed. I hope he will buy his food from the 
stores at a cheaper price than he has been buying before because 
there won't be any import duty on that food, and the store -ought 
to reduce the price of food, But so far as that income tax is 
concerned, the tax on his wage deducted by his employer is the 
only thing he will pay. For other people who do not work for a 
wage they will have to fill out an Income Tax return. I am sure 
that there won't be too many of them that'll have to do it and 
there'll be help here to help them fill it out. 

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: I earn only $300.00 a year. And you say that 
Income Tax is $600.00 for girl or boy or who? But I only draw 
$300.00 a year, Will I pay any 2% just like in this Bill?’ Shall 
i pay Ghe,.22 tax? 

  

Mia DlGLus: Now No tax, 
  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: No tax? 
  

MR. SICLiR: Oh! I hope I didn't misunderstand you. Did you’ mean 
your $300.00 as your Senate salary? 
  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINAS My $300,00 I get in American Samoa, Just ‘three 
hundred dollars, 
  

MR. SIGLER: Is that $300,00 from Senate salary? 
  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: Yes, Will I apply this 2% here ‘in ‘the BAll?   

MR. SIGLER: Yes, The 24 would apply to your Senate salary. But, I 
shouldnt’ say thiss:: TP you haves sirebebaes 
  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: You say before, the income tax in the United 
States will be $500.00 to $600,00 excention for a dependent, But 
in here, how would you get exception in this Bill here? 

  

MR, SIGLER: The way it works Senator, is that if -you or any other Se— 
nator has an income of his’own, a cash income, from his own busi- 
ness or his own profession, ‘that amount of income is not’ subject 
to the 2% tax and that was what I thought you were referring to, 
If from your own income from your outside activity if that iS-less 
thane ecseONeeoeit'l} have to be un to $3000.00, $4000.00 before “it 
would be subject to tax, It is not subject to the 2% tax. Now, I 
didn t realize that you were asking about the salary paid to each 
Senator and each Representative. That is a salary and that would 
be subject to the 2% tax, 

  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: So this 2% here, it means a sort of income tax, 
right? 
  

MR. SIGLER: It's a tax on wages, 
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ENATCR LAGAFUAINA: That's what it is for? Wages?   

MR. SIGLER: Wages. Only wares,   

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: For anyone who works in the Government, for Van 
Camp, for stores. 
  

MR. SIGLER: For stores, Yes, anybody who works for a ware. It does 
not make any difference who pays the wage. If you hired someone 
and pay him a wage to come out and cultivate your plantation, if 
you paid a wage for it, that person will be taxed on his ware, If 
you do it under the matai system where there's no money involed, 
there's no tax, 

  

SENATOR FAIIVAR: I believe now, for instance ‘that's the only work we 
had here. Just that $300,00 we earn here, etc, 
  

  

MR. SIGLER: And you had no other eash income? 

SENATOR FAIIVAE: No other, I believe that is what the Senator meant 
and it's about that three dependents? 
  

MR, SIGLER: Well, I understood that the Senator has another business,   

SENATOR FATIVAR: Well, I mean a person not self-employed, Mr, Laolagi 
say, who has no other business, 
  

MR. SIGLER: In this case, he has no. other business and the $300, 00 
that he gets as a Senator is all the cash he gets, the déperidents 
wouldn't enter into it, he would have to pay the 2% tax on his 
salary and that's all there 4s to it. Two percent of three 
hundred dollars is $6.00, 

  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: I have another, I come from Nuuuli on the long 
way with my basket of coconut and I come here on the Malae and 
sell for $1.00. This 2% will apply too? 

  

MR. SIGLER: No, . 
  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: No!! 
  

MR. SIGLER: That's not awage. Now if ‘you were in the business of 
selling copra, you would not pay any tax on it unless your income 
from selling copra got up above all your personal exemptions, Did 
I maye myself clear, Senator? 

  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: Another one I ask, Let's talk about the merchant, 
If the merchant earns about a million anda half a year for sel- 
ling his lures; and he pay all his working people and everything, 
and he left only....the profit that was left was $5000.00, that 2% 
Wi) eotheet. oc. L 

  

MR» SIGLER: How much was left? $5000.00 -   

  

SENATCR LAGAFUAINA: He left about $5000.00 profit. 

ae & ep  



MR. SIGLER: The 2% does not apply because that's not a wage. He is 
not working for a wage. 

  

SENATCR LAGAFUAINA: You said before that the profit he makes when he 
sell his. goods, 
  

MR. SIGLER: The profit now is taxed under the sliding scale,not the 
two percent..... 
  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: Just the wage scale....that's a1 eee uet: othe 
wages of the people this 2% will apply to? 
  

MR. SIGLER: Senator, the 2% applies only to wages, Now, in the case 
you are illustrating, you're using, where a merchant sells his 
goods during the year and ends up with $5000.00 profit. Now that 
profit is taxable not at 2%, but is taxable wnder this ‘sliding 
scale that I mentioned to yous It starts at 20%, not 2%, Put the 
first tax on that $5000.00 profit after deducting his personal ex- 
emptions is 20%, Now let me pin this down to be sure I am makdne 
it clear. 

  

If a merchant earns $5000.00 net profit....that's over and above 
all his expenses...,if he has $5000.00 in the bank, left over at 
the end of the year, then he is taxed on that $5000.00 in this 
way. You just deduct his personal exemptions. If he has a family 
of five; I mean, if he has five exemptions at $600.00 each, he 
would have $3000.00 exempt, So you deduct $300.00 exempt from 
his $5000.00, and that leaves $2000,00 that is taxable, It is 
taxable at 20%; and 20% of $2000.00 is $400.00, 

SENATOR FATIVAE: Say vou earn from Mr, Kneubuhl at the end’ of the 
year, locally, $2000.00 and you have two exemptions, that'seesece- 
  

MR. SIGLER: That leaves eight hundred, 
  

SENATOR FATIVAE: Eight hundres and you pay that income tax on aight 
hundred, 
  

  

Mie SIGLER: I pay it, yes. 

SENATOR FALIVAE: Alright, that's what I've been saying, l-éarn here 
$300,00 and I have two exemptions, my wife and.I, Well, not, 
TAL hades 4 

  

SIGLER: But you see, the income tax, I would say, on $800.00 is 
20%. That would be $160.00 I'd pay. You pay 2% on $300.00 which 
is only $6,00, 

  

SENATOR FATIVAEs No exemptions...   

MR. SIGLER: No exemptions on the wages because the percentage is so 
low, 
  

SENATOR FAIIVAE: That's right, 
   



Mie SIGLER: You see, the illustration you used, you nay $6,00 and I 
pay a hundred and sixty dollars. Now is 2% and you pay that only 

if it is more than you would pav under the sliding scale. Now if 
the sliding scale is more, then you would have to pay’that, But 
for most people according to the illustration you used, it's 2%, 

  

CHAIRMAN: Suppose, for example, I earn $5000.0C a year. Then my ‘2% 
of the salary tax will be cut off? 

  

Mie SIGLER: No, 
  

CHAIRMAN: You mean I pay 2%? 
  

MR. SIGLER: No, If vou earn $5000.00, the 2% will not apply, because- 
you're going to have to pay a higher tax than 2%, 

CHATRMANs On salary? 
  

Mh. SIGLER: Yes, You see the way that works is that you file a,you 
have to file tis declaration in the beginning of the yearsand if 

that declaration shows you're going to have income in excess of 
your deductions......let's say your personal deductions arain are 
five, Five daductions. If you deduct: $3000.00. from $5000.00 then 
that $2000.00 left will be taxed under the sliding scale. So you 
would not use the 2% formula, There will be a withholdinr based 
unon the 20% formula, 

  

CHAIRMAN: Now you take this. Now after I take so much percentage 
on that, bear in mind, as a salary; now 1 denosit part of it into 
the Bank of American Samoa, Next year come, is that part of my 
personal income? 

  

Mi. SIGLER: No, The interest would. No, that moeny that you have 
saved is not income the next year, It is only income once, 
  

CHAITMAN: Say, Van Camps. The products here, is the product of Am 
erican Samoa, fish. Now suppose the worth of the fish produced 
here is five million dollars’a year. They sell that in the United 
States, Is that income an income in American Samoa or an income 
in the United States? 

  

Mie SIGLER: It is income of American Samoa. They are from here, If 
they buy fish from the Japanese Fleet and put it in the cannery 
and sell it and process it, all of their profits, whatever amount 
of money they make, that is everything left over and above their 
expenses is profit. That is prefit in American Samoa which is 
taxable at the rate of a little more than half--52%. Put it this 
way: If they make $1,00C,000.00 in profit, they will nay © the 
Government of Samoa’ one half of the million dollars in tax. 

  

CHAINMANs Is there any Land Tax in this Bill here? 
  

MR. SIGL&k: No. This Bill has no Land Tax at all and it reneals the 
present land tax; the present tax doesn't amount to verv much but 
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the taxes on leases, I believe, and tax on freehold, But those 
taxes are repealed. We get almost no money from those taxes. at 
is so small it doesn't amount to anything. The Governor indicated 
in his message to you yesterday that he might propose at some fu- 
ture time a land tax, but he has not submitted it to you yet, and 
I don't believe he intends to in this Special Session. 

Everybody who lives in American Samoa and works in American Samoa 

and g ets the benefit of the Government’of American Samoa, and this 
Government provides a lot of services, everybody who lives here 

and has income here under this Bill will have to pay a tax te help 

support the Government. 

CHAIRMAN: Do you think this is not a law that will stop some new in- 
dustries coming down here? 

  

MR. SIGLER: Well, I sincerely hope not, Senator Logo. There is that 

problem but the Governor has fone into the problem very carefully, 
He has talked to the industries that are now here, or nlanning to 
come here, and those industries understand that this Tax Bill is 
before you and that the Governor has recommended that you enact 

it. At least one of those industries has indicated that it is 
quite satisfied with the tax, It is satisfied to pay tax, let us 

say. It. is unhappy a little bit with some of the provisions of 
the Bill, but they are perfectly willing to pay a resonable Sa- 
moan tax. Now, I am speaking just for that one because. I have 
heard from that one. I don't know about the others but I am cone 
fident that the Governor has told them that they are going to be 
taxed this way and they are planning to come to American Samoa in 
view of that statement. And I don't think that it will discourage 
industries from coming down in the future. I think this isa 
reasonable tax, There are still advantaces to industries here 
that they do not have if they put their plans in the United 
states, And I think you can expect it to attract still more in- 
dustries. 

  

CHAIRMAN: The way I look to the corporation: tax, becuase if the 52% 

tax on the net profit is paid over there, say that it is easier to 
pay here, there is no reason why the industry should want to come 

here, They have to pay the taxes, 

  

Mi. SIGLER: There are other reasons, Mr. Chairman. One is they have 
an Industrial Incentive Act, which ifs already in the book, under 
which you grant tax concessions to new industries that are coming 

in here, So as a new industry discusses its proposal if they need 
tax help, the Tax Incentive Law permits the Governor to give them 
either a complete exemption or a part exemrtion. There are other 

atvantages. The location of Samoa rives the fish canning business 
an advantage over other locations somewhere else. The fact that 

products from American Samoa can fo into the United States without 
duty is an advantage. There are other business advantages that 
will cause business to come here, The businesses lmve come here 
for those reasons and this tax, I'm confident, is not going to 
drive them away. 

  

 



CHAIRMAN: You see the point I try to put up is because American Samoa 
is included in the Congressional Act With respect to the wage 

scale of new industries, So the Labor Committee is coming down 
here I think every two years, Now the wages are going up, I think 
it will be fifteen cents than there are right now, So maybe the 
Labor Committee will come down next year and raise the ware scale 
up to one dollar on industries, So plus this 52% of income taxes 
they should pay to the United= States, which is also I think paid 
in here, on the income. I try to think of incentive ways because 
this Incentive Act are the exemptions at the same period of time 
say probably ten years. So we try to come across on that point in 
somewhere there we!ve got to give the incentives.eccccece 

  

Mi. SIGLER: I think before the ten years are up, I think the Legis- 

lature may want to take a new look at the Incentive Law. . Right 
now, as you indicated, is limited to ten years, It's hard to tell 
what the economic situation will be ten years from now, Ten years 
is a long time. My suggestion to you is to wait until the time is 

almost up to decide whether the Incentive Law needs to be changed 
or the Tax Law needs to be changed, But right now, I think you 
can impose this tax without driving any industry away that is al- 
ready here. I am quite sure of it. I don't believe you'd dis 
courage others from coming in. That's a judgement, Senator Logo, 
It is only my judgement and I five it to you for what it is worth, 
It's the Governor's judgement. He feels the same way, That this 
would not discourage industries from coming in, The present tax 

law is not a good one. It is not a food situation where industry 
is completely exenpt from income tax in American Samoa, This is 
an attempt, that is, the Governor's proposal is an attempt to 
place American Samoa in a position which is almost the same to the 
United States but not qnite., There are still differences, And I 
think the 52% Corporation Tax Law is a fair one to impose in Am 
erican Samoa, But I express it as my personal judgement, you un- 
derstand, 

  

There is one other incentive to industry that I failed to mention 
that is in this Bill. This is a greater incentive, tax incentive, 
to industry to come here rather than stay in the United States, is 
in the form of credit investment-—-a credit for new investment, In 
the United States the law permits a credit to he given only for 

the value of the land that is involved in the new investment. Your 
Bill, the one before you, includes anv improvements on the land, 

any buildings that are constructed, That is an additional incen- 
tive in the Samoan tax law that is not in the Federal. 

  

SENATOR FATIVA®: A few minutes ago you said one of the major induce- 
ments why industries want to come down here is that they can. send 

their products to the United States and land them free of duty? 

MR. SIGLER: Land them free of duty in the United States, yes. 
  

SENATOR FALIVAE: In other words if they land fish in the United States 

they have to pay? 
  

MR. SIGLER: No, But if they canned it in Tahiti and send it to the 
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United States, they'd have to pay. 

SENATOR FATIVAE: I should think that if they could get a lot of it ine 
to the United States they could do away with the duty and the 
freight. 

  

  

SIGLER: Well, some of the companies, of course, do can fish in the 
United States. It depends on their total exnenses. By canning it 
here, they are closer to the source of supoly; that is the fish 
that are brought in from the area around here. They avoid trans-~ 

portation costs on refrigerated ships clear back to the United 
States, I don't know the business features but I am told that it!s 
more economical to can here under the local circumstances that it 

is to can in California, 

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE T: I have a question. As you ‘see here in Samoa 
are about 2,000 Samoan workers. If the Government fisures off its 
2% from all each working peonle's salary and outside business, will 
we get more from it than the poll tax right now? 

  

SIGLER: Yes, The Treasury man who was down here from Washington 
last fall submitted a report and in it he estimates that the total 
income......do I understand the question to be whether the taxes, 
all taxes under this whole bill will be larrer..... 

  

  

OUNATOR MULITAUAOPELE Ts If we pass this Bill, 

MR. SIGLER: Yes, the whole Bill or just Income Tax, do you ask? 
  

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE T: Yes, 
  

MR. SIGLER: The whole tax, 
  

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE T: Yes, 
  

Mie SURES Det hdinle Shee wai. 
  

  

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE T: Beeause if we pass this Bill, tax, and «then 

we no more poll tax. The Government is going to collect from us 
according to this Bill if we pass. it. That's why 2 want toi.s5% 

SIGLoR: If you pass this Bill, I think that the money that goes to 
the Government of American Samoa will be just a little bit more 

than it is now collected, but not much. Chief Pele, let me give it 
to you this way. All taxes under the present system in American 
Samoa total five million eight hundred thousand dollars. I'm sorry 

I gave you the wrong figure, The’income will be more, The income 
in 1962, under the present system, that is the income for last year 
was eight hundred and sixty seven thousand, five hundred dollars; 
from all local revenue, All kinds of taxes, Under this Bill, if 
you pass it, the estimate; of course we have to guess; we don't 
know, because we don't know how much import duties we're foing to 
get; we don't know how much profits these corporations are going to 
makes but our estimate, our guess is that the income will be two 
million, three hundred and sixty four dollars. 
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SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: Thank you, That's all, 
  

MR. SIGLER: Let me correct my statement with you Chief Pele, » I'm 
sorry I wasn't better prepared to answer you. The figure I gave 
you is the guess for 1965, which is three years. That takes into 
account the anticipated increase in business, Now the guess for, 
the comparison I should have given you is, for last’year under the 
present rate system; the figure I gave is correct, eight hundred 
and sixty seven thousand, If we had anplied these new rates in the 
Bill before you; if this Bill had been law last year, we would have 
collected one million, three hundred thousand, and sixty five, ak 
think that's the better comparison. It shows that this BALL 
would have raised last year about five hundred thousand dollars 
more, About half a million dollars more. 

  

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: Another question, Now this tax for their pro- 
fit, net profit, is there any protection by the Government there 
for the people of Samoa? Because what I heard, you mention only 
two thousand working here in Samoa right now. 

  

MR. SIGLER: That's working for the Government, 
  

SENATOR MULITAUAQPELF: Working for the Government, yes. And I'm sure 
there is only about four hundred outsiders; for’instance. two 
thousand four hundred, And I'm sure we don't know, maybe this 
means we're going to run out if they don't like this new Bill, if 
we pass it. What I want to find out, is there any protection by 
the Government, between the Samoan title and his local people. 
Because you read how they should pay 2%.eceees 

  

MR. SIGLER: The Business Tax. 
  

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: Business Tax, yes. Besides the poll tax. The 
point I'm afraid, because only two thousand four hundred Samoans at 
work right now. And I'm sure the Samoan people are over ten thou- 
sand right now, And I'm sure about thousand or nearly ‘thousartd 
children can't work; still paving, But nine thousand, old men and 
old ladies, men and women, girls and boys, they all part of the 
source, When I see this Bill and this hundred percent duty on 
cigar and cigarettes, and most of the Samoan people are smokers 
of cigarette and also cigars. Is there any protection for us, be= 
cause we don't have that money......if the business people rhi&se 
up the price of their goods, Any protection for the Samoan people 
because very few Samoan corporation tax, but the rest of the Samoan 
people don't have the finance to buy this thing because (they . tall 
pay tax on all different items, 

  

  

SIGLER: The Governor mentioned that-in his discussion; and there 
is provision in the Bill; that is, we hope will help meet the pro 
blem, The Section is 18.0603, Let me read it to you. "The Gover- 
nor is authorized to reimpose or increase the amount of duty that 
applied before this chapter was enacted." That's the only reason, 
on duty and other things, He may reimpose that old duty or ‘inere= 
ase it. If the duty on any article, or if he determines that 
the level of retail prices for a particle has not been reduced to 
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the extent warranted by the change in duty. Now that means,if the 
duty on food, 15%, is repealed as this Bill would do, then food 
will cost the merchant 15% less than it did before. And this pro~ 
vision that I just read to you goes on to say that it's the intent 
of this section that the benefit in the reduced duty will go to 
the Samoan purchaser and not to the merchant. And that means that 

if the merchant buys his food at a lower cost, 15% lower, he ought 
to charge 15% less, for the sale of his merchandise to the “Samoan 
public. Well, let me correct it. He buys the food for less, . he 
ought to sell the good for something less. I don't know how much, 

The point is this, though, You are quite right that the merchant 
will be subject to a new tax for the first time, He will have to 
pay tax which he has never had to pay before. He might try, He 
might raise prices to the Samoan people if the Samoan people will 
pay their increased prices, That's the problem that every town, 
every village has, That's what the public will be willing to pay. 
I don't know of any way of guessing or estimating whether the Sa-— 
moan merchants will raise the price of goods. And I just’ can't 
answer it, I don't know, 

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: Well, thank's very much, That's why I don't 
understand it because if the Government is going to step on those 
business people the business people is supposed to step what they 
have to take in what the Government takes off. 

  

  

MR. SIGLER: Well, not necessarily. 

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: Now who suffer? The Samoan people, because 
maybe only two thousand five hundred Samoans working but nine 

thousand Samoans 411 go to the store as I mention, School children 
and old man, old ladies, they all buy from the store, Buy every= 
thing, cigarettes, gasoline, kerosene, matches, that's why! 

  

MR. SIGLER: That depends. Everything depends upon the amount*of ‘pro- 
fit the merchant is making, Now this treasury study shows that 
the, what they call the markup, is the difference of the merchan~ 
dise and all expenses, and the final price that the Samoan pays 
for it. I think it was around 20%.....was the increase. °' That's 
profit markup. 

  

The Government doesn't try to control the amount of profit that 
anybody may make because that's a part of our free enterprise 
in the American system. But the amount of profit that a merchant 
can make depends on how much merchandise he can sell, And if he 
raises the price too high, he can t sell it. So he's got to judge 
what is the price at which he can'sell the most merchandise ‘and 
realize the most profit, That's a matter of judgment. If he rai- 
ses it too high, the Samoans stop buying. They just don't buy ci- 
garettes if the price is too high. And that gets me to the other 
point. You mentioned the increase on some articles. You are quite 
right. The duty is increased on cigarette and beer and” other 
things. It is increased over what it was before, That's’ something 
that you will need to debate among yourselves and eon— 
sider whether you want the higher duties to apply. The rea~ 
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son for the Governor's proposal however, is this. If the - import 
duty on the luxury items is placed high, then the Samoans will be 
inclined not to buy the luxury items but to buy ‘the nécessities, 
Instead of buying beer, they will buy bread and sugar, or what-- 
ever it is they need to buy to live, That's a devise used to dis~ 
courage the people from buying things that are a waste . of their 
money. Now what I regard as waste of money and what you regard as 
a waste of money of course, may differ. 

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: You think it's fair to stop somebody from buy~ 
ing what he wants, instead of putting a law there, don't buy 
ONVCAUNS soe sss 

  

MR. SIGLER: It don't tell me he has to buy, it says if you buy ciga- 
rettes you gotta pay a little bit more for it, Chief Pele, I'm 
not trying to persuade you that the duty proposed here on < each 
item is the right duty, That involves a matter of judgement, and 
I think that you'll have to do some thinking and discussing your+ 
selves, The one thing that I think you need to bear in mind is, 
there is need for a total amount of money from import duties, And 
the import duties ought to be fixed to raise that amount of money» 
Now if you want to reduce the duty on cigarettes, you better 
increase it on something else.....(Speeches after this point were 
not recorded on tape), 

  

The Government ends up with all of the profits from the sale of 
liquor....enot just the tax on it, But it gets all of the : profit; 
and all of the profit goes into the treasury. 

CHAIRMAN: Yea, but what if the consumer does not buy more?   

MR. SIGLER: You do that by raising the prices, The Government seis 
liquor at a price which is considerably higher than the cost, 
Let's say it costs the Government a dollar to buy a bottle of wine 
and sells this bottle of wine at a dollar and a half. It makes a 
50% profit, Now if the Government wants to make more profit it 
raises the price. Instead ‘of charging a doller a bbdttle it charges 
two dollars a bottle. The Government can fix the price ‘of liquor 
at any price it wants to. Whatever it fixes is profit, and the 
whole profit goes into the treasury. What I'm trving to answer to 
you is, there's no reason to tax the profit because the tax its 
just the cushion of the profit, The Government gets all of the 
profit. Since it gets it all, there's nothing to tax, 

  

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: That's whay, because the Government orders, that 
is why we pay no duty. 
  

MR. SIGLER: There's no duty, but the Government charges a price when 
it sells that products; and the profitessece 

  

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: Then how come the Government sells at high 
price and where that money goes tossecece 

  

  

MR. SIGLER: The profit goes into the Samoan treasury, 
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SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: Well, why? 
  

  

MR. SIGLER: Well, because all duties go there, too, 

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: ‘Why do the outside neonle, business people pay 
high duty down here, and why doesn't the Government nay duty? 
  

Mie SIGLER: The Government gets the profit from the sale; let's ‘say 
the sale of whisky, the Government gets the entire profit. In the 
case of beer, sold at a tavern, the Government doesn't pet the 
entire profit. The Government only gets this income tax from the 
beer tavern operator, 

  

SENATOR MULITAUACPELE:: And why does the Government do that? Because 
the Government shouldn't do.....is not suppose to make business, 
Let the liquor own by outside business, 

  

SIGLER: That. could be done. All I can say is that isn't the way 
the Governor is doing it. It's possihle to give a concession to an 
individual to run’a liquor store, but it will be very difficult, 
The way it is now, the profit from that liquor store goés to the 
Government which is all the people, Let the profit from that 
liquor store help run the Government’for the benefit of all the 
people. If you give a concession to, let's say you, to run a 
liquor store, then you fet to keen the nrofit. You'll have to pay 
bax, OuCiies on 

  

SENATOR MULITAUACPELEs Well, I pay tax. 
  

MR. SIGLER: Well you, but that wouldn't be all the profit. There'll be 
something left over that you keep. And the question is, snould the 
profits from the sale of liquor go to an individual or should it go 
into the treasury where it benefits everybody, 

  

SENATOR MULITAUACPELE: And according to what you said, the Government 
runs business? 
  

Mi. SIGLER: Only that one business. I wouldn't want the Government to 
rin anything else, 
  

SENATCR MULITAUAOPELE: Buses? Bus business? 
  

MR. SIGLER: Well it does, I think if we have a private utility system 
to take over the bus system, we'd be willing, would we not? 
  

SENATCR MULITAUAOPELE: Is there any reason why Government won't do 
the same thing to opening liquor to outside business people, like 
ordering beer and other foods from outside? 

  

SIGLER: Oh, we do order it! The Government does buy from outside, 
The Government buys liquor from the States; but we do buy from pri-+ 
vate sources, The point, Chief Pele, I'm trying to make is ‘this, 
Liquor is a monopoly, It has to be regulated, and the question is 
whether,...the question is simple....should the’ profits from the 
sale of liquor go into the hands of one nerson, one merchant; or 

  

IS  



should it go into the Samoan treasury where it helps run the whole 
Government. If it soes into the hands of one merchant, sure the 
Government taxes the profit, but it doesn't tax all of-the profit, 
It just taxes part of it. In the case of a corporation, half. But 
then the other half goes to the merchant. The way it's set up now, 
the entire profit goes into the treasury. 

CHAIRMAN: Another question, Doesn't this point with resvect to li- 
quor.+.eyou see, I'm speaking as not the consumer because now beer 
is what I buy. You see, the consumer of the beers, you see, re= 
gardless that all the money from the liquor will- go to the trea— 
sury, the Government's treasury. But the consumer, when the Go- 
vernment is going to raise, that nobody knows, 

  

MR. SIGLER: You mean on beer or hard liquor? 
  

CHATRNAN: Cn liquor, Because that will be up to the. esees 

MR. FLANNERY: Chief, there's a Liquor Control Board. It is on its ree 
commendation that the prices of liquor are established, Now li- 
quor being a luxury item, the price will depend on the recommen— 
dation of the Board with the approval of the Governor. A senarate 
law entitles the Government to the control of liquor which is re- 
commended in the past and has been worked on many times, But 
I don't think liquor, in this instance, has anythine to do’ with 
these tax proposals, In my home state, liquor is controlled ty the 
Government, You can't lob a stone to buy a bottle of liquor * bes 
-eause it's the same in many places, 

  

MR. SIGLEN: Yes, in many states in the United States, the State Go- 
vernment runs the liquor store, Byt it seems to me from the stand 
point of revenue, which is what we're talking right now,frem tax 
collection, the Government gets more money out of running the li- 
quor store than it would get if it lets somebody else run the store 
and tax it. 

  

  

ENATCR LAGAFUAINA: ‘When I was back in the States I bourht liguor ‘from 
the store, 

MRe SIGLER: In some states the liquor is sold by private stores, In 
some states the liquor is sold by the state. The state of Maryland 
where I live, it is sold-by the state, You can't buy it in private 
business. In California, you can, 

  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: I found in the States you buy liquor from the 
store; you buy beer there. ccccoces 
  

Mie SIGLER: That's California, In other states it's the other way as 
I just described. Well, the point I want to impress upon you,re— 
member we're talking about money. The amount of money you get, the 
Government gets, If the Government pets all the profits, it gets 
more money than it gets by taxing anybody else. 

  

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: That's the point I want to mention about liqyor 
and being in business, That sounds bad to use.eethe Government 
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orders the liquor and pays no duty. Those that get the liquor from 
the Government are not all the Samoan people. Only those who have 
permits signed by the Governor, But the liquor or beer ordered by 
the outside merchants is for everyone, 

MR. SIGLER: No Chief Pele, it works this way. If the Government col- 
LECESs seer scecs 
  

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: Don't compare the States with Samoa, This is 
Samoae 
  

MR. SIGLER: Let me make this comnarison for you. The Government col- 
Jacted the duty for liquor when it was brought in, It would then 
reduce the price of liquor when it sells it to’ the purchaser so 
that the price would be a little bit less.......,.no} I'm sorry, 
the other way. Let me start over again. If the Government charred 
a duty on liquor when it brought the liquor in, and sold the liquor 
for the same price, then it would have a smaller profit from the 
sale of the liquor and a little and more from the imposition of the 
duty, The two together would be exactly the same. When you add 
the duty to the profit, it would come out to the same amount :of 
money. 

  

CHAIRMAN: Can you give an illustration on this 40% on automobiles and 
other necessaries, becuase there are some automobiles that have 
been imported for business, I mean for....ecee 

  

MR. SIGLER: Taxis? 
  

CHAIRMAN: Yes. But there are some persons who still buy their  auto- 
mobiles not for the purpose of making a business here. But, sup~ 
pose I want to order my own car for my personal use. I never first 
inform some people that that automobile is for business. ‘I£'s 
harder for me to order than to run the business; buses, taxis, but 
that's my own personal car. Why is the raise? 

  

MR. SIGLER: Chief Logo, whether the duty on automobiles should be in- 
creased is one of the things I feel we are here to discuss. Now 
here's the reason though, for our recormendation, The present duty 
is 25%, and the Bill proposes to increase it to 50%, There are a 
lot of cars on the island now. There's goins to be a lot more, and 
it's getting to be crowded. If the Samoan people who buy cars and 
bring them here, could be persuaded to buy smaller cars’that cost 
less, it would take up much less room on the hishways; it would 
wear out the roads much slower, and there will be less congestion; 
and you could still get decent transportation around the island, 

  

So this increase in tax is intended to encourage people to buy 
cheaper cars, and avoid this congestion, Now, let me emphasize 
that it's a matter of personal judgement and each one of you is 
gOing to have to use his own judrvement whether this is a fair rate; 
But that's the reason for our recommendation, The cars, hig cars, 
are a luxury in a small islan? where there are a lot of people and 
the number of people increasing every day. Five years from now 
there maybe five thousand more neonle living on this island, It's 
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going to set crowded, and with these cars that are running up and 
down the road, big cars, it's roing to be difficult for the people, 
I know, They push me off the road now when I walk hack and forth 
and I have to dodge them, I don't like to walk on those hard’ rocks. 
They wear off my shoes, But it s a luxury item and this tax will 
result in persuading the peoplé to buy the smaller cars that cost 
less, I think that it will be better, 

  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: I thought this Bill was a good bill, but now I 
understand some things, and this Bill will stop the welfare of the 
DAMON. bce Worse oie 

MR. SIGLER: It's going. to stop what?, .s....-   

SENATCR LAGAFUAINA: The welfare of the Samoan people. What do vou 
care about if I want a big kavale? This day is full of kavale. Do 
you want Samoa to still walk without kavale? You don't want so see 
modern kavale? *.u want to see food taxi here? You want to go 
back to the 1900? 

  

Mi. SIGLER: No, Senator Larafua, I don't at all, If you think this ‘is 
a bad Bill, then I don't want you to pass it. I think it's a good 
Bill, I'd like to persuade you that it's a good Bill. To ‘answer 
your question though, I don't want the Samoans to go back to the 
olden ways. I want them to get all the good things in life that 
they can get, I want you to have everythine that you can ret under 
the law, I'd want them for you as well as for myself, I am not 
saying that you should walk; that the Samoans should walk, I am 
Saying that if there is a limited amount of space every nerson in 
Samoa cannot drive in a Cadillac car or a Buick car, a big car. 
Everybody can't drive a Ford or a Chevrolet. There isn't room, 
Now, if the Samoan people can drive smaller cars, there'd be room 
for more. More peonle can have cars. Whereas they couldn't if 
they all have large ones, That's my reason, I think Samoa would 
be better off; more people would be better off. 

  

  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: Income tax on Hard liquor. Why? mn account you 
buy that hard liquor only, Very few pennle who are Samoan have 
permit, You don't give tax for that thine, mly about one hundred 
people buy hard liquor. Beer, now. almost all Samoans co there and 
buy. So you raise the price of them things so to make the Samoans 
stop buying beer which is what the people want.’ And you say that 
they are to so and buy bread and something else, instead of buying 
what they want. Is that a far way? 

MR. SIGLER: Let me answer you. There are two points that you are 
making there. Does the Samoan nay a birrer nrofit on keer than I 
pay when I buy a bottle of hard liquor? The answer is no? I nay a 
higher profit. The Government makes more money when I buy a bottle 
of whisky than it makes when vou buy a bottle of heer, 

  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: I mean one hundred neople here buy hard liquor - and 
nine thousand people buy beer. do you mean you want to make the 
rates so that the nine thousand neonle cannot buy beer? 
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Me SIGLER: No! 
  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: Then what about cars, cigarettes? 
  

MR. SIGLER: Now let us talk about one thine at atime, So far as the 
car is concerned, I have explained the reason why we suggested an 
increase in the duty, JI indicated when I started, however, that 
you may feel the duty ought to be a different figure; and I’am not 
trying to tell what the figure is. I have given you the reasons 
for recommending this figure, Now, I won't reneat the reasons. 

  

Now, on the subject of beer and liquor, hard liquor, I am not 
going to try and defend the present system which restricts the sale 
of hard liquor. I am not competent to do that. I did not make 
that rule. You did not make the rule and I am not poine to try and 
defend it, But in terms of money, in terms of the beer, 1 can 
speak on that point. The increase on the duty of beer is explained 
the same way I did on automobiles, in terms of money, If the Sa— 
moans are spending a lot of money on beer, and I'm told they are, I 
don't know because I have no nersonal knowledre. But if they're 
spending a lot of money on beer that could be used to better advan~ 
tage, let's say in starting a business of their own, or if they put 
the money back into some productive enternrise, they would probably 
be better of, Now I'm not trying to dictate that they must do it. 
This is the Government speakinr if you adopt this kind of rule, 
The Government believe, if you do believe, that it would be better 
to divert a little bit more money from this kind of nleasure, to 
business or some’ other enterprise. Now that's the theory of in-= 
creasing the tax, the duty on pleasure and luxury items, You never 
try to cut off all of the luxury. That would be a mistake. But 
you can fix at a point where the Samoans would be at a little bit 
to their advantare to nut that money somewhere else, 

CHAIRMAN: Let's go back to this 50% tax (duty). I have fonrteen kids, 
How could I buy a smaller, cheap car to transport my fourteen kids 
to school? 

  

Mi. SIGLER: I'm afraid you couldn't, Chief Loco. I'm afraid - you'd 
have to buy about three of them. Now in your case, in the case of 
anyone who wants to transport a large family, it's the ‘choice he- 
tween a large car or more than one. I don't know the answer to 
that, 

  

SENATOR MULITAUADPELE: The thine ahout this duty on heer’ to sell in 
the store. The Samoan people are roinr to huy beer, instead of 
making out food business, That we are sure. This would be had, 
I don't think so, I doubt very much,’ If the Government gets hun— 
dred percent duty, that would be had, tecause most of us like to 
drink heer. Because we don't have nermit to buy liquor. The local 
store businessman buy beer at a hundred percent duty; they're going 
to raise the cost of a hottle of beer, and the Samoan neonle are 
going to pay more, And I tell you the representative of the Co- 
vernment, the Samoan neonle will hear’ the business people raise the 
price, the Samoan peonle keen’ buying beer. Because they never want 
to make the home brew, Well, if the Government try to do this, the 

  

a 206  



Government try to make the Samoan people turn around and make his 
own home brew, Because with the increase in duty the heer would 

cost about thirty or thirty five cents, 

MR, SIGL’R: No, Mr, Flaneery is firuring it out now, I think we fi- 
gured it....that the increased duty will probably not raise the 
price of beer more than a penny or two, 

  

SENATOR MULITAUACPELE: The business people, and we all know that if 
the business people order something and Government raise up the 
duty, the businessman raise up the price to make even with the Go- 
vernment, Who suffer, the Samoan people because Samoan peonle 
going to buy. 

  

MR. SIGLER: I can't tell you what the increase would be, But this is 
your judgement, on whether beer should be something that the Sa- 
moans should be urged to buy or whether they should not. %h, no! 
I don't mean to put it that way. This is’a revenue measure, A 
measure to raise moneys; and the question is, do you want to raise 
money from the beer drinkers or from somehody else. You've got to 
raise the money somewhere. It's the question of, on which duty 
item do you put the hirshest duty. 

  

CHAIRMAN: I think we have to, I think we have to listen to witnesses 
on the stand, and I wish to thank you very much Mr, Sigler,’as you 
are the Lefislative Counsel, We'll always need vou any time, anc.. 

  

Mi. SIGLER: I'm available whenever you want me, Chief Loro, I!11 be 

glad to give any heln I can. 
  

CHAIRMAN: We have to nlan to call some husiness peonle, and whoever is 

interested to testify before this committee with resnect to this 
Bill, We greatly appreciate your help without which this Committee 

could not answer some of the questions which will be asked by the 
business people or some of the recommendations to this Bill. 

  

Mi. SIGLER: I. would like to attend your Committee meetings when others 
give their testimonies if vou let me know when you're coing to hold 

them. 

  

CHAIRMAN: Thank you very much Mr, Sirler. We are going to nottfy you 

when this Committee will sit, 
  

SIGLER: That's fine, 
  

CHAIRMAN: Committee Meeting will now recess unitl 10:00 a.m., January 

Hy 1963 ° 

   



SECOND DAY 

January 17, 1963 

CHAIRMAN: The meeting now comes to order. In accordance with the list 
the Secretary has, our first witnesses will be Mr. pelle and Mr, 
Mike Kneubuhl,. May I request Mr. “pelle and Mr. Kneubuhl to take a 
seat? Since you are representinr one firm each one of you should 
fell free to speak at any time. The Chair mirht make some rulling 

if any remarks or any question will be out of the subject under 
discussion, May I ask what firm you are representing, Mr, Mike 
Kneubuh1? 

  

MR. KNEUBUHL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr, pelle and ‘myself repre+ 
sent the firm of B, F, Kneubuhl, and I'd like to say, Mr, Chairman, 
and members of the Senate, that we are very erateful for the op- 
portunity that you have given us this morning to anpear here before 

youe We had the privilege of being -in your hearing yesterday 
afternoon, andas a citizen of Samoa, I was very pleased to find 
the hearings conducted in such a high level. Now we have had a 
chance, in the limited time that has heen available to us, to study 
the new Tax Bill that has been proposed to the Fono. And we have 
some specific comments to make on this-Tax Bill. And I'm sure that 
with more time for more thorough study, we would have comments and 
possibly objections to this Tax Bill at a later date, 

  

We feel, gentlemen, that this is one of the’ most complicated laws 
in «xistsence anywhere in the world. In fact, the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1954 is one that most lawyers in the United States don't 
understand, Most peonle can specialize in taxes and don't under= 
stand it. Now your Fono and the people of Samoa are being asked, 
in fifteen days, to adopt into law, that will affect our lives for— 
ever, something that we do not understand, If Samoa really needs 

an income tax, we feel that it should he tailored for the Samoan 
people, should he tailored for the economy of Samoa, It should be 
a law that the Samoan people wants; and it should be something that 
will establish something what the Samoan people want Samoa to be in 
the future, 

This Bill that is being presented to the Fono, incorporates the 
United States Federal Code, United States Federal Law, But Samoa, 
in our opinion, is more like a state of the United States, Now, it 
is our feeling that if we are to have a tax law,’ and if a tax law 

should be superimnosed in Samoa from the outside, that this law 

should be a state law that we would adopt; and not a Federal Code 
such as this. For example a state tax law from the State of Cali- 
fornia, or the State of New York, 

The Fono is being ‘asked to adopt into law something it did not 
even see, We feel, gentlemen, that this Federal Internal Revenue 
Code of 1954 is a’very complicated law. This is the Internal Re- 
venue Code. This, gentlemen, consists of over a thousand pares in 
fine print, I don't think that I could read these thousand pages 
in fifteen days. It seems to us, gentlemen, that if a tax law is 
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to be passed here in American Samoa; if it is worthwhile to have a 

tax law, then it would seem to me that it would be worthwhile to 
treat a tax law in its entirety. It presents us a tax bill like 
this, But this Bill, really, is not the entire Bill. You cannot 
go through this Bill and read it, and adont this as the law 

of Samoa, because it is referred to this. 

Again,l say if Samoa is to have a tax bill, we should have a tax 
bill that we can pick up and read, and refer to it in its entirety. 
Now I am speaking for myself as a citizen of Samoa, and I'm sure 
that there are a lot of neople in our local population who would be 

willing to pay money to engage tax specialists, tax attorneys, or 
whatever we need to prepare for Samoa, only for Samoa, American Sa- 
moa, a law that will be good for all of our people, in taxes, If 
this Bill is passed, gentlemen, if it is adopted, we are adopting 
the existing tax laws of the United States. It will mean that we 
are giving, by writing, proving this tax law a blank check. Be- 
cause any tax law that is adopted by the Treasury of the United 
States automatically becomes adonted here in American Samoa without 
the Fono having a chance to consider it and vote upon it. 

Again, gentlemen, we want to reemphasize that I for one, and I'm 
sure many people here in Samoa are not asainst an income tax here 
in Samoa, or some sort of tax bill. But we would like to see a tax 
bill that is propoerly prepared. We would like to see something 
which the Fono is given time to debate and consider it, In the 

United States of America in 1905, took from, I believe 1906 to 1913 
to revise and pass a tax law, This is a very, very importaént 
thing. Well, gentlemen, that is the end of our opening statement, 

We would like to answer any questions the Committee desires to ask 
Of Us, 

CHAIRMAN: Before we refer the matter-to the Lerislature Counsel here 
and Mr, Flannery,will you comment, if you like, on these other laws 
which are spelled out very plainly in this Bill. Like tax on auto- 
mobiles, beer, and all other laws which are plainly spelled out 

here? 

  

MRe KNEUBUHL: Thank you Mr. Chairman, There are a few things that I 
heard yesterday, that I would like to bring up to your. attention 
once again, © the question specifically on beer, Mr. Chairman, I 
believe Chief Pele yesterday was asking quite a few questions about 
this item. The new duty on beer in this Tax Rill is a hundred per-— 
cent. The duty at the present time is fifty percent, In answer to 

a question by Chief Pele, Mr. Flannery replied that the cost of re— 
tail price of beer that now sells for twenty cents would go up only 

one cent. We would like to say that we went through, we handle in 
our own retail store three different brands of beer, In costing 
these out, based on the new one hundred percent duty, the one brand 
that we now sell at 19¢ per can will sell for 24¢ at the same mark- 

upe The other brand that now sells for 20¢ retail will have to 
sell at’the same markup for 25¢, And the most expensive brand that 

we have, which is Millers High Life, which now sells for 25¢, would 
have to sell for thirty one cents per bottle at the same markun, 
And the markup, incidentally gentlemen, for your henefit, is twenty 

  

ie AOS a  



percent, In the United States the markup for this type of product 
is forty percent. 

I would like to comment, Mr. Chairman, also on your specific sug~ 
gestion to comment on automobiles, on this duty. Unlike Mr. Sicler 
we do not believe that’ automobiles here in Samoa is necessarily a 
luxury. As Samoa grows, and as this Bay Area grows, more and more 
of our people and our population will have to live out in the coun~ 
try. They have to find ways and means to come into town, to go to 
work, take their children to school. ~And also I feel that if a man 
has worked hard and earned his money, and if he can-afford to buy 
an automobile, he should be given the opportunity to buy an auto- 
mobile and do whatever he wants to do with it. It-’is said here in 
Samoa that our roads are already crowded, I wonder, gentlemen, if 
you have seen some of the roads in the small tows in the United 
States, If we think our roads are crowded, then their roads are 
impossible to even drive on, The reason for a road is to he used, 
And also I do not believe that it should: be the policy of © the 
United States to encourage in our citizens, people of Samoa who are 
associated with the United States, many of us are citigens of the 
United States, should encourage us to buy small cars which are pri- 
marily made by foreign countries. 

  

CHAIRMAN: May our Counsel here comment on beer? 

Mh. SIGLER: Mr, Chairman, I anpreciate the opportunity, and my purrose 
is not to engage in a debate or an argument but to ensure proper 
hearing and get all the information before the Committee. The 
reason I've asked to speak is I'd like to correct a statement that 
I made yesterday, that. the price of beer would £0 up one or. two 
cents. Since that hearine yesterday we have cheeked our recoras, 
and our records support what Mr. Kneubuhl has just now told the 
Committee. let me use just one brand as an illustration, which 
dees checks very closely with Mr. Kneubuhl's recent statement. Ac— 
cording to our records, that is, the duty on beer, that the landing 
cost, the cost of landing it in Pago Paro ‘will be $3.32 each case 
at twenty cents per can or bottle which is, JI understand, the cus— 
tomary selling price, the case would sell for $4.80 and that 
is a markup on the cost price, the landing cost rrice of forty four 
percent. If duty on beer is raised to one hundred percent as the 
Bill provides, the landing cost for the same two brands will be 
$4272, and at the same markup of 44%, the selling price would be 
$6.00 for a case which will be twenty five cents for a bottle. So 
the increase per bottle cost at a 44% markup over the cost’ price 
will go from 20¢ to 25¢, which I think corresponds closely to what 
Mr. Kneubuhl said with respect to actual selling price, It does 
not correspond, I believe, to a selling markup} of course I realize 
that markups are figured in different ways, and I specify this as a 
markup over landing cost, 

  

Mi. FLANNERY: May I say something? Yesterday I was not aware that -in 
calculating of the increase of this 2% duty on beer should he added 
to your twenty five or twenty six cents on the ordinary beer. 

  

Mi. SIGLER: Mr, Chairman the reason I asked for permission to make the   
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statement now is so that the information on this one subject should 
all be in one course, and I thoueht perhaps I should interrupt the 
witness because I hope I could be conductine mvself in a manner 
that contributes to a clear hearing, 

Mi. KNEUBUHL: Mr, Chairman and Memhers of the Committee, generally 
on the’ Customs Duties Section of this Bill other than the specific 
things, and including the specific things that we've already men— 
tioned, f think that this is a camouflage in this sense.....that we 
are taking away the duty, basically, on food items, thourh we are 
increasinr the duties on many other items, And it was, I believe, 
stated by either Mr, Sirler or Mr, Flannery yesterday at your hear-— 
ing that the revenues that will he earned hy the local Government 
from customs will be suhstantially the same if this Rill is nassed 
as it is now. So essentially, arain, another flaw I can see is 
that we will be nayine duties, hirh duties, in very many instances 
and also payins taxes. 

  

MR. OPELLE: I'd like to make some comments here on the section on ‘the 
duties that are beinr imnosed for their heins consicered, It seems 
that under item (t) of the free list, that's items of household 
furniture, appliances of every kind, wearing apnarel and personal 
affects, motor vehicles, bicycles, and several articles nart, and 
equipment, that are imnorted hy employees of American Samoa or by 
employees of the Unitec States, are exemnt from duty. If such 
employee is temporarily vresent in American Samoa in connection 
with his employment, Now we are maintainine, it apnears, and if I 
understand this correctly, that on the one hand we have the same 
condition now for employces, contract emnoloyees from the United 
States coming to work in American Samoa, the same exemntions which 
will be continucd if this new Tax Pill is adopted, whereas Samoan 
contract employees will continue to pay on these items, “because 
they are not temnorary employees or residences of the Government, 

  

Now, one of the purposes, if I understand correctly yesterday in 
the testimony sciven by the Executive witnesses here, was tax 
equalizes the tax structure in American Samoa so that it would 
apply equally to local peonle on income basis, Actually this is a 
form of favortism again that is heinr nerpetuated and is sort of in 
a sense slipned throuch. here to make exempt and neople comings down 
here who do nay inc tax and now the local people here will be 
subject to the income tax laws, the very same thinr, and they'll he 
paying duty. I want to ask to achieve a better uncerstandine of 
this particular section, What is temvorary? Are school teachers 
temporary? It's a very immortant noint, because we've all known 
that certain inequities have existed between the salaries of 
qualified Stateside Samoan teachers who come dow here are paid a 
certain salary, and peonle who are from the United States with the 
same qualifications are naic a hisher salary. So the reasons pre- 
viously given are that, well, Stateside peonle nay income tax and 
that was sort of used to sunnort the idea thet it was not such an 
unequal thing after all. But we are wonderines here if this does 
not perpetuate this narticular favortism, 

Mi. SICLER: Mr, Chairman, since Mr, Opelle has asked for ‘informsfion   
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I would like to interrupt at this noint of his testimony. First, 
on the salary scale of naid teachers or for any other Government 
employees, has only an indirect bearing on the duty question. The 
indirectness comes from the assertion that the disnarity of dff- 
ference on salary bases takes care of the difference in income tax 
liability. I believe that is not correct, The salary scale for 
teachers is exactly the same for Samoan and Statesidé employees 
with the same qualifications. It is the same with one difference, 
and that is the 25% differential that 4s siven to the American 
empllyees when they go away from their homes, The basic salary 
is the same. The differential of 25% is vnaid to the Stateside em- 
ployee for the inconvenience of leavine their home and taking em 
ployment at a distant nlace. But the salary in the basic scale is 
the same, 

The Second point I want to make is that this 25% differential is 
not a recognition of a difference in tax liability, It is not in— 
tended to comnensate the Stateside teacher for the taxes naid by 
the teachers in his pay. That is not the nurnose of the 25% dif- 
ferential. It is the other purrose that I have just stated, 

Now, the third point that I would like to mke is this, The exem™ 
tion from duty which was the subject when we started off talking, 
for household articles or similar articles brourht here by State— 
Side peomle is limited to the time that they are’ used by the neonle 
temporarily here. The first time they are sold, that is, any em 
ployee who comes here for two years, and at the end of the two year 
contract he leaves, unless he takes them with the, if he salls 
them to anybody here, he has to nay duty at that time. So ir 
the articles are left in the islands, they become subject to duty 
that would have been naid in the first instance, They are not 
duty free if left here. 

Now the reason for that is a very practical one, The Stateside em 
ployees who come here have to have a nlace to live. They have to 
have furniture. They don't live in the Samoan style. In order for 
them to be induced to come here for the amount of salary we nay, 
they have to be allowed to bring the essential things of livine 
with them or else they just can't be hired. But the ‘important 
point that I'd like to stress is that when they sell the articles, 
if they leave them in the island, they are subject to the sams 
duty. ‘ne final comment, That is, the provision that is in the 
law now has been in effect for many years and it does not represent 
any change, Thank you Mr, Chairman. 

CHATKMAN: Proceed Mr, Opelle, 
  

Mi. “PELLE: I believe Mike would, 
  

Re KNEUBUHL: I'd like to turn this hack to Mr. “pelle, but a thoubht 
occured to my mind on the comments of Mr, Sigler with regard to the 
fact that Government employees are not payinr 25% duty for the 
household effects, But they do pay duty when these household 
effects are sold. The comment, I believe not in these exact words, 
was that to entice Government emnloyees down to Samoa, they should 
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have necessities of life, articles, that they must have, because 
after all, they cannot live like the Samoans. This, of course, is 
an implication that the Samoan people do not desire the same ar-— 
ticles and the same standard of living, And furthermore, -if this 
is a reason for this law, then anyone member of the Fono, or any 
citizen of Samoa should be able to import his hed, his clothine, 
his dinine room table, his appliance, duty free as long as he uses 
it himself and does not sell them, 

MR. SIGLER: Mr, Chairman I don't: want to response, I think you have 
all the information you want, and you neonle must decide, 
  

CHAIKMAN: Any further information you would like ‘to put ‘before this 
Committee? 

  

Mi, OPELLE: I just want to take a moment to reemphasize the terrific 
perplexity of this law. - And if you'look at the berinning of the 
law, under Chapter 18.04, Income Tax, the imposition of the tax, 
that what is being asked to be enacted here is all those future un— 
born laws that micht be enacted in the United States, 

  

Now, it would appear to me, that the Conrress may enact laws that 
are tailored to the representation and interest of the United 
States; tailored to the needs and requirements of a community that 
is very different from the Samoan community. The different stage 
of economic development, the very complex induéttries, and social 
development, And even most laws that Conzress enacts sometimes are 
very unequal from different parts of the United States,let alone a 
group of islands as far away from the United States as Samoa is, 
with a different culture. But still those are valid there, But we 
are being asked, it seems, that the Income Tax Law enforced in the 
United States of America and those which may hereafter be enacted, 
that's a very large thing, We don't know what's poing to be en- 
acted, And this harps back to the opening statement that we are 
being asked to accept in total, a very comnlex set of laws that are 
not necessarily tailored to American Samoa's develornment. And that 
we're also being asked to accept future laws that we do not know 
anything about. fiven this book here does not have the 1952 amend— 
ments, Besides the complexity in administration, it would seem 
that what we need and want here in Samoa is a clearly defined, 
equitable tax law, not necessarily income tax law, but tax laws 
that will contribute to the economic develonment of American Samoa, 
and help pay the way. Nobody objects to that. But we want thines 
that we can understand and can apnly to this area and which will 
make sense in American Samoa, 

CAAIRMAN: I wonder, before we fo any further, I would like Mr, Sirler 
to comment on this point that was brought uo by Mr, Kneubuhl's’ re- 
marks with respect to, in case we adopt this law, this Bill, any 
amendments to be made, say amendments after 1954 to this United 
States Revenue Code of 195k, Any amendments made thereafter, or 
any amendments that will be made after this year is adopted, will 
they apnly here automatically? 

  

Mh, SIGLER: Mr, Chairman, I should be plad to explain that provision,   
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You have read it correctly and have interpreted it correctly. This 
Bill that you are considering will adopt the Income Tax provisions. 
It isn't the whole book; it's part of the book that relates to In- 
come Tax, You will adopt all those provisions as they now exist. 
Nothing in’ 1954 that exists right now in January of 1953. ~- You 
adopt them, .however, not completely but after adontinr them, you 
take this P4411 and proceed to make chanres in the intervals we just 
adopted, tailored to fit the needs of American Samoa. That poes 
to one of the points that has been mentioned, 

On your specific question, why does Samoa adopt laws’that maybe en- 
acted in the future back in the United States, Well, the reason is 

this, If the Fono decides a few basic prineinles that it wants and 
adopt the principles, then the future chanres in the Amarican laws 
would follow as a matter of course, And the princirnles are these: 
should the citizens of American Samoa pay the same general income 
tax as the citizens of the United States nay. The Governor zave 
you these reasons yesterday and I have tried to restate some of 

them also, That is, in the form of recommendation, The two taxes 

should be the same, Now, if they are to be the same, then a change 
in the United States must also be the same change here. And this 
Bill provides for that automatically. More imnortant, however, the 
President of the Umited States has sent to Conrress for enactment 

this year a reduction in the income tax.In fact the’ President ‘has 
urged a revision of the whole Ineome Tax Law and specifically to 
reduce the taxes, The President has asked for that and if Conrress 
passes it, then it will automatically anply to Samoa in the same 
way. That's the primary reason, althourh there are two reasons for 
this reference to the chanre of the laws in the future, Mr, Chair- 

man, may I go on and give a few brief comments on the points that 

have been made? 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, 
  

Mie SIGLER: And again I hope that you'll understand, and I hope the 
witnesses to understand, that I don't offer these as arguments’ as 
I don t intend to debate it. I intend to pfive resnonse to the 
points that have been raised and use that as an incentive to help 
you make up your minds as to the direction you want to proceed. 
The first point I want to comment on is the comnlicateness of the 
law, I told you yesterday that the law is commlicated; is very 
complicated. And the witnesses! statement is quite correct that 
most lawyers and most people of the United States are not familiar 
with the many details of that law. It's not necessary for me to be 
familiar with all these details in order to make a judgement; in 
order for you to be able to make a judgement on whether the law 

should be adopted. The creat mass of details relate to the way 
the law is administered, 

  

There are few very basic principles involved, And those prin— 
ciples are simple. Let me state them for you.e The first principle 

is, the individual in Samoa should pay the same income tax that is 
paid into the United States if he has the same salary. There are 
not many that has the same salary and that's the imnortant qualifi- 
cation. That's the first basic princinvle. The tax on that salary 
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is a graduated tax and it starts off at 20% and goes up to 90%. 
Now that's not on salary but it's on income and it's ‘complicated 
adjustment. But the point is, there is a graduated income tax upon 
the income of every individual and this Bill proposes that Samoan 
individuals pay the same tax if he has the same income, 

The second basic principle is one that is tailored to meet ‘the 
needs of Samoa. And I think it is an incorrect impression that it 
has been received here that this Bill is not tailored to meet the 
needs of Samoa. It is, After the first section under this Title, 
everything else that is in there’ is tailored to meet the needs of 
Samoa. If you weren't doing that, you'd have just the one section, 
adopting the laws of the United States, that's all. But instead of 
doing that, it goes on for many pages making changes to fit the 

needs of Samoa, 

Now the basic principle, this is the second, the basic principle 
for Samoa is the 2% wage tax in place of the graduated income tax 
that applies to the higher salaries; higher income, But for the 
lower income, the basic prinicple for Samoa is this wage tax of 2%, 
This is a small tax. Very modest. Much less than if it would be 

paid on a percentage basis than by the person with a higher income, 
Several people in American Samoa pay tax that goes up to thirty or 
forty percent of their salaries. This tax is only .2% and the 
reason is the difference in salary, So especially for Samoa, it 
is a very small, modest tax of 2% of the wages, That appliés:' to 
the bottom of the scale, That is, if the Samoan citizen has an in- 
come that is high; and is high enough to get into the bracket of 
the upper scale then the upper scale will apply. That is the rea- 

son on these two points. 

The third point is that everybody in Samoa should pay the same in— 
come tax as the American citizens pay if they have the same income, 
And the second tmsic principle is that the Samoan special provision 

is that they should pay @ very modest 2% wage tax. 
Chief Pele, I see that you are waiting to translate and I am sorry 

for talking so long. 

The second eomment that I would like to make for the information of 
the Committee is in relation to the suggestion that if the Fono is 
going to adept some other law, it might better adopt the law of the 

states such as.New York or California, instead of adopting the laws 
of the United States. I believe I can assure you as-a lawyer that 
the Income Tax Law of New York is just as complicated as the income 
Tax Law of the United States. As we know, the great purnose, -the 
great tax, the important point is not how much tax that is imnosed. 
Now the states ordinarily impose a lower tax than.the Federal 
Government, The reason for that is that the citizens of the United 

States have to pay them both, I have to pay a United States tax, 
I also have to pay a state tax. In the United States of America, I 
pay two taxes, Now the proposal before you is that Samoans pay 
onlv one. They pay Federal tax, and they do not nav any state tax, 
or anything that would be comparable to state tax. That's the 
reason for our reeommendation that we do not adont the system of 
another state, another jurisdiction, but the Federal system under 
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which everybody has to pay, rather than the law of any state under 
which only part of the people has to pay. That is my dddit#tonal 
comment. I hope you understand that this proposal, this Bill, is 
something that is not imposed from the outside, I# is not, It is 
something that vou are considering, and that if you agree, you will 
adopt it as your own. But it is not imposed on you, It is your 
free will if you want to adopt it as your own, 

I'j1l try and comment, Mr. Chairman, in relation to the time in 
which you have had to enact this law. I'm very much aware of the 
fact that the time is short. That is, the time of this Special 
Session is short. I'm very much aware of the fact that this is a 
complicated subject. I'm also aware of the fact, as mentioned by 
one of the witnesses, that it took the United States many, many 
vears, something like from 1906 to 1916 toret the first Income Tax 
Law. That's not very good in relation to now; howsver, because the 
problem then was one of Constituional Amendment. They had to 
amend the Constitution before the Congress could enact a tax law. 
But you have a rreat advantage here. You have had fifty years of 
experience in working a fair and just income tax system in the Uni- 
ted States, and you don't have to so throurh that old process here, 
as you can borrow and use the experience obtained there in the Uni- 
ted States, So you have’ this advantage, though I agree with every— 
thing that has been said, that this is complicated, and the time is 
short. There's no question about it. Nevertheless, a beginning 
must be made, We must start sometime; and it scems to me that un— 
less a better system is proposed in concrete form, it would be well 
to consider this one as the best alternative available richt now. 

IM. CPELLE: Mr. Chairman, I just like to make a comment while we're on 
the’same subject of the taxon wages. This is the difference in 
the, there is a difference possibly, if my understanding is correct 
this is the next clause over, is that in the United States ‘there 
is, under a certain income bracket, that ample exemntions are 
allowed no income tax to be paid, whereas in Samoa a 2% tax is im: 
posed, irrespective of the hardship involved, In other words, 
there is a limit in the United States where the people in the lower 
Salary category do not pay income tax, Here, everybody would pay 
under this provision, an income tax, 

  

MR. SIGLER: Mr. Chairman, does the witness want me to five thé reason 
for the difference? The reason is, in American Samoa, the wage tax 
is the only practical way of collecting the income, And TI cx 
plained to you yesterday that there is some injustice in this Bill. 
There is inevitably some in. every tax bill, And I explained to 
you that in order to get the wage, to get the tax, with minimum of 
administrative red tape, the Bill provides for withholding 2% of 
the wages and that's withheld at source. Now there's not very many 
employers, people who pay the wages, in American Samoa, but I don't 
know what it is, about thirty maybe. That means there is a rela— 
tively small amount of people who do the paper work of withholding 
the wage and nay the tax to the Government. 

  

Now on the ground of fairness, this one of the provisions that is 
made to fit the circumstances in Samoa. It's hard for me to under— 
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the Bill to meet the needs of Samoa, and,then the next time ecriti- 
size us for tailoring it, becuase it isn t the same as the American 
system. Now you can't have it both ways? This has got to be dif- 
ferent from the American system tailoring it to Samoa, or else 
it's got to be the same as the American system, The American plan 
would not work in Samoa. It wouldn't collect very many pennies ‘for 
the Government without this special made provision for the 2% tex, 

KENUBUHL: Mr, Chairman, before I go on to one point;the other potnt   

MR. 

that we would like to make....and this is the question of attract- 
ing new industrv to Samoa, I'd like to just briefly, again in lise 
tening to witnesses, Mr, Opelie and Mr, Sigler on some of your 
questions...e.again this very important basic thing comes up. And 
that is...we don't know, at least I don't know, and I don't know 
how many members of this special eommittee know what they are going 
to vote for, I don't feel, as you do, Mr. Sigler, that - if ien't 
necessary for these people to understand something that they are 
going to vote for. Something that will affect their lives and the 
lives of their children and many other peonle who will be born here 
in Samoa. 

SIGLER: That is not what I said.....   

MR. KNEUBUHL: I believe you said that it is not necessary for them to 

MRe 

understand every bit of the Code that is in here, 

SIGLER: Yes, the details of administration. It is very innortant   

that they understand the principle provisions, the basic provisions 
of the tax law, But the details of filling out forms and whether 
you are entitled to this little deduction or that, those are the 
deductions that most people never try to master and needs a tax 
lawyer to do that, 

KNEUBUHL: But to finalize my point, I would just like to say that   

MR. 

if it is worthwhile to wkite un a tax law for Samoa, theh we should 
have a tax law written like this or like this in its entirety. at 
Seems to me, as you've already stated, that we are adonting this 
Internal Revenue Code of 1954 with exceptions, And the exceptions 
are those situations where this Code do not apply to Samoa. 

SIGLER: Flus the new provisionS..cecece   

MR. KNEUBUHL: Plus the new provisions plus any other provisions that   

will be adopted by the Treasury in the future, which these peonle 
will have no opportunity to decide on or to deliherate about Sg 
My example before about the state was my personal feeling that Sa- 
moa is perhaps more like a state, If in nothing else, in : sige and 
there is undoubtedly that there is less complications in -a state 
like Arizona or Nevada in their tax laws, as there would before 
adopting the Federal Internal Revenue Code for one of the most 
complex countries....the biggest nation’ in the world, This is what 
eceeel'm just trying to understand this, and perhaps yon ceh eRk+ 
lighten me...I'm completely confused when you say this is a....that 
we are taking the xperience of a nation and it's probably the finest 
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nation in the world—~I know it is, in their tax laws and avplying it 
here in Samoa, I don't think that this is necessarily esood for Sa~ 
moa.e JI think that you can't take taxes, a tax code or a tax law 
that has grown through the ages for such a commlicated society and 
people and impose those laws ona society that is probably com- 
parable to 1850 in the United States, This is my first comment and 
I'd like to po on further on another important point, Mr, ‘Ghairman, 

Now, Mr. Chairman, Senators, we heard yesterday the remarks that it 
was not felt by the witnesses called here yesterday that the taxes— 
this Bill, would affect the attraction of new industry to American 
Samoa. I feel that this will definitely affect new industry coming 
into Samoa.e Now, Van Camp Tuna Company is the only industry on— 
erating here at the present time, It is true that Star—Kist is 
thinking of coming here; the American Can, perhaps a few others but 
they are not in existence, Now, I am sure that if we had an income 
tax law like this in 1954, when Van Camps was thinkins of coming to 
Samoa I am sure that they would have thoucht ahout this twice and 
perhaps would never have come to Samoa; because what would be the 
advantaves to their coming to Samoa? Supposing that Western Samoa 
decided to have an Incentive Act? That is near the fishing crounds; 
or Tonga; or Fiji. You are foing to ask these industries to come 
down here after their Incentive Law exemntions expires-«s«.ecome down 
and pay the same corporation income taxes as they would in the State 
of California? 

Now, another imnortant point. Yesterday, on this same subject, I 
heard some one make the remark about what would hapven, thinking of 
another industry, what would hapnen if a brassiere factory would 
operate, or were to come to American Samoa, Under this Bill now 
that is before us unless there is some specific exemption, exception 
made, any man who would come to American Samoa to start a brassiere 
factory that micht employ two or three hundred peonle would he ab-— 
solutely sticking his neck out. For this reason, I bhelieve that 
there is a section in this tax that something to the effect that 
within the first ten days of any calendar year the Governor of Am- 
erican Samoa for the reason, for the nurpose of manufacture and re- 
export. That means then, for example, specifically, let's think of 
the coconut factory that is coming in..ccece : 

SIGLER: Will you please tell me the section that you are referring   

MR. 

to? - 

KNEUBUHL: Yes, Iwas trying to find it heresesece   

MR SIGLER: Probably umder the exports duty.eesercces   

MR e KNEUBUHL: Exports or Imports I believe it wasSsececce   

MR * SIGLER: There's one section on Exports....and I'm sure that's what   

YOU ONCses ses 

CPELLE: Twenty five....pame twenty five....,.   

KNEUBUHL: Yes, that's it....Duty on Exports. This section says   
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that "During the first ten days of any calendar year but not there~ 
after during that year, the Governor may, after prior consultation 
and discussion with the exporters substantially affected, impose an 
export duty applicable for all of that calendar year on any article 
exported from American Samoa destined for imvortation into the 
United States Customs Area," Now, taking the case of the coconut 
processing plant, my understanding is, if they imnort coconuts from 
Tonga and 51% of the value of that coconut..,0fseceOfeso.Of. of 
the product that they manufacture is incurred here in American Samoa 
and that those coconuts could then be imported free of duty and the 
items can then be imnorted into the United States free of any taxes 
or duty. 

  

MR. SIGLER: That's rightscsscosee 

MR. KNEUBUHL: Under this law, under this Bill, if any man who wants 
to come in here on business such as they are do not have exception 
to this, they're crazy because within the first ten days the Gover-— 
nor may say boom, twenty five percent duty on coconuts, Is that 
true Mr, Sigler’? 

  

MR. SIGLIRs If you don't mind being interrupted, JI would be hanpy' to 
explain the reason for that provision, Now it is broad, as you say, 
And it means that substantially....the way you have interpreted it, 
The reason for the relation, however, is completely a different one, 
tt is related tb the fishing industry. And, I think,I am sure that 
both the fishing enterprises that are here, both Van Camps and Star— 
Kist are well aware of the reason or reasons for this. And they are 
these: there is a controversy between canning industry and the fish- 
ing industry in the United States. Between them and people that im- 
port into the United States, fish or fish products are in - competi- 
tion, At the present time fish products coming from Amerivan Sa- 
moa go into the United States duty free, If!the quartities‘of those 
imports into the United States got very large, the United States 
would have a serious problem in connection with the canners doing 
business along the California Coast of America primarily, This is a 
form of controlling the amounts of imnorts going into the United 
States, I hadn't thought of it in terms of the brassiere manufac— 
ture, and as it is written up it could be arplied there as well, It 
is a precautionary measure and the chances are that it would ‘never 
be used; that there would never be a need for it, Its mere exis- 
tence, however, prevents the pleas and cries, It is one of those 
things which is designed to control import—exnort trade into the 
United States, I am afraid that I didn't say that clearly enough, 
Chief Pele, 

  

Mr, Chairman, if I may have just one more minute, I hear the noon 
whistle blowing. In order that there may be no break in the think— 
ing here, I'd like to give one comment in regard to those two points 
that have been raised here. First, I agree with them that the Sa— 
moan Income Tax Law could be put together into one piece of paper 
where you can read it all at one time, That will be done. A pro- 
vision of the Bill directs the Governor to do just that, To put it 
together and publish it as one big document. . I don't believe that 
would have helped your committee any in considering the details of 
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the Bill now if it had been done earlier; because I believe that the 

hearing would have gone on pretty much the same as they are roing 

now, A discussion of basic princinles toa degree or the many, 

many details, 

My second point is..;.l hope that it is understood that I meant it 

goes to the point of discouraging industry from coming here, There 

are two things which I think the committee should consider and I 

believe I touched on them briefly yesterday. One is that the Indus- 

trial Incentive Act provides the means by which a new industry can 

be exmpted from this or any other tax in American Samoa for a‘ max- 

imum period of ten years, Secondly, since specific mention was made 

of the new industries figuring on coming here, I think it will be 

appropriate for me to say, at least that I have been told by the 

Van Camp representative repeatedly that they are in favor of paying 

income tax and that they support an Income Tax Bill. In fairness I 

must say that they would be hanpier if the rates were lower, So far 

as paying an income tax is concerned they have indicated on apgree+ 

ment, With respect to the other companies that are coming here, 

Star-Kist, American Can, and the Coconut ~ Processing Company they 

know that an income tax was being proposed by the Governor, They 

knew that when they were negotiating their contracts. And they 

signed the contracts in light of the knowledge that the Governor 

would ask and hope that Samoa would adopt an income tax law. Now, 

in conclusion, I don’t think they would be discouraged from coming. 

MR. KNEUBUHL: Mr. Chairman, I know you all want to go to lunch but ‘if 

I would have just a minute to clarify just one point so we won't 

forget it? We are discussing here incentives for business. My. 

Sigler says that he doesn't feel, from the people that are here now 

on business industries such as Van Camp, American Can, Star—Kist 

Tuna, that they are not necessarily opposed to paying income tax or 

this Bill, 

  

First of all I'd like to point out that these three industries are 

concerned primarily with fishing. There are no other industries 

here, Talking about copra, coconut processing plant, a’ brassiere 

factory and oil, bulk plant and what have you, anything, manufac-— 

turing automobiles if that were possible here. We are talking about 

other industries that might come to Samoa, Not just one particular 

type of industry that is already here and already established here, 

I just wanted to bring that point out and also perhaps, aS.a sug= 

gestion, that if it is possible for this committee and that time 

permits, to call some of these industries here and have you hear 

what their opinions are first hand, 

CHAIRMAN: All business people have been informed that if they are ‘in- 

terested in testifying before this committee, they are welcome. 

This committee will sit again at two o'clock and if you are avail- 

able at that time, we would be hanny to have you again. I think 

members of this committee would like to ask you some questions. So 

we will recess until two o'clock, 
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CHAIRMAN: Our meeting will come to order. We want to continue with 

Mr. Kneubuhl and Mr. Opelle and their testimony,’ 
  

MR. OPELLE: Mr. Chairman and Senators, I just want to say again on be- 

half of both Mike Kneubuhl and myself, how extremely grateful we are 

to be able to present our views before this committee for’ the Se- 

nate. And thank you for the time, though your time is brief, and we 

will take but a few minutes to briefly point out what we have to 

Saye 

  

I'@ like to refer this to one or two points which were discussed in 

more detail this momning in the sense of a brief summary. And say 

one point, it was mentioned that this will be printed in American 
Samoa a year later. I believe that was the statement that was said, 

The entire law, including what's here into what has been printed 
here, locally, This does not seem to make too much sense once the 

Fono has taken action, They should have a law in front of them now 

in order that they can understand it and then pass it or reject it, 

as the case may be. 

I'd also like to suggest that the ministering of an extremely com 

plicated tax law is a very expensive proposition. That is the ex- 

perience in the United States with this present law. ‘Sometimes it 
costs more to sdminister the law correctly than the actual revenue 

that is obtained. More people from the outside have to come in and 

help out in the administering, 

And in this whole matter of tax, we believe that the princinle is 
extremely imnortant. And the principle as expressed by the Govern 
ment witness earlier has been that Samoans should fray the same tax 

as Americans in the United States. This we believe is a false pre- 

mise, Conditions are different here in Samoa. The economy is dif- 

ferent. Samoa needs its own tax law designed to help Samoa grow and 

prosper and to raise the Samoan standard of living. 

It was also ex>ressed earlier by Government witness that it is a be-— 

nefit to Samoa to accept fifty years of -United States tax ex- 

perience. We believe this is not necessarily a benefit to Samoa, 
There are extreme problems in the United States with the tax law 
that is up there, as I believe anybody who knows about it would . 

agree. That experience does not necessarily benefit Samoa and its 

different problems, and its different state of economic development. 

And we believe one very important point in this whole matter is that 
a person with a family in the United States with the same income as 
a Samoan family here in Samoa, under this law, in the United States 
this individual would not pay the tax on wage of 2%. In Samoa, the 
Samoan would pay that tax. But he would not only pay the 2% tax on 
wages he would pay the high import duty on furnitures, cars, apnli- 
ances; would pay additional freight differences to get the thing 
down here as comnared to the United States, In other words there is 
no equality here, 

MR. KNEUBUHL: Mr. Chairman, Senators, there are a few additional 
points that I would like to add to Bob Opelle. Mr. Sigler,I 
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believe, is a lawyer; and this morning Mr. Sigler expressed the 
opinion in a business manner, that this tax law would not dis- 
courage new business in coming to American Samoa, I'm a business 
mane I'm not a lawyer. I'm a business man, I woul? ‘efinitely be 
discouraged in expanding my business or going into business here in 
American Samoa. 

For example if we had known that our business, or that a tax like 
this were to be passed, we would not have expanded about $3000.00 
in the last eight months here in American Samoa. I'm sure, also as 
a businessman and not as a lawyer, that many other businessmen would 
feel the same way. I definitely feel that this would discourage new 

business and new industry from coming to Samoa, 

We proposed gentlemen, that at no cost to the Government, that we 
prepare and properly study a form of a tax law, Something that 
would benefit Samoa, Something that would be appropriate for Samoa, 
And in'doing this, I feel that we should bring forth the very best 
brains, many members of our Senate are Samoan members of Government 
as well as members of the local government here, emnloyees cf the 
United’ States, of the Government, as well as peonle in business, We 
should, and I'm sure many people here in business would be glad of 
the onportunity to spend money to bring from the United States the 
very best tax attorneys, tax exnerts, outside of the .Government,. 
That we spend time, and a lot of time, trving to understand any pro- 
blems here in American Samoa, a unique odsition we in’Samoa have, as 
opposed to the comnlex, enormous, gigantic Tax Code that is con— 
tained in this book, This is a very complex thing. It is inanpro- 
priate as far as American Samoa is concerned, and we feel that it is 

a matter of so much imnortance to all of us here in Samoa who’ are 
going to live here permanently, not just for two years, four years, 
That it is something that we should study and carefully consider, 
and propose the best law possible for this beautiful, wonderful 

little island, 

Thank you very much Chairman, I think that concludes our summation 
from the discussion this morning. We would like t° answer any 
questions that any of the members of your committee desire to ask of 
us. 

CHAIRMAN: Am I correct that your testimony was that it is more expen 
sive to administer this law than what we get out of that tax? 

MR. OPELLE: I would say that the increase in our production is being 
brought up in the way of revenue now, could be cut down considerably 
but by increasing expenses, that is a problem. It is an unknown 
factor in this whole matter, And it is going to be very hard to say 
whether in the long run, the additional exnense involved, whether 
the increase in revenue is that much warranted as far as the local 
population in concerned. Possibly for one or two of the industries, 
possibly some immediate gain. But there again the Tax Incentive Law 
would take care of any revenue in the point of view, So very pos— 
sibly the exnenses could be up to a considerable portion of the gain 
over the present income, 
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CHAIRMAN: Anybody that would like to answer the witness? 

MR. SIGLER: Mr, Chairman, for the information of the committee, ‘the 

Governor and his staff has considered the question. They have 

planned to call the administration, and they are confident the cost 

of administration will not materially affect the amount of revenue 

that we will receive if this Bill is enacted. Mr. Opelle's state- 

ment about the cost of administration will eat up some or most of 

the additional revenue...of course most things are possible in this 

world, that that is not a probable result in payment of the people 

who will administer the law. Ihave to say that if the question 

were asked directly of the witnesses it would indicate that they are 

quite familiar with the United States Income Tax Law, Most ‘of the 

people who will be subject to substantial taxes, high taxes, will 

have to have help in filling out their tax returns. That's the 

normal procedure, There won't be quite very many people on this 

island so far as most Samoans are ‘concerned, there will be almost 

no paper work, Perhaps one fourth, short form, half a page. And 

that will be substantial paper work for them. The cost of adminis-— 

tration of the Bill as a whole will oppose your statement as 

incorrect in terms of income that's realized. 

  

Mr, Chairman I had some other comments but I thought I'd pass then 

in favor of the witnesses to proceed, until a later time, 

MR. KNEUBUHL: Mr. Chairman, I would add just a thought, perhaps add to 
your understanding that you asked of Boh’Opelle and answered by 

Mr, Sigler. We feel that for this Tax Bill, to be administered pro- 

perly, that there will necessarily be a situation where more peonle 

would have to be employed by the Government from the outside to ad 

minister it. As far as estimates of the Government are concerned, 

in many instances in the past, in my opinion these estimates * have 

been way off. I cite a very recent example of apartment buildings 
that were supposed to have been built fifteen dollars per square 

feet, and ended being built for twenty nine cents a square foot. I 

have very little faith, speaking frankly, and as an individual, in 

estimates of the Government of American Samoa. 

  

MR. SIGLER: Of course the witness is entitled to his ‘opinion and Ps 
respect it as I respect any opinion that is expressed, I trust in 
any other unilateral opinion should not....in any event this is a 
question that should not be decided in the faces of generalized 

statements, I don't know what the figures are. I'm sure Government 

estimates are never completely accurate, That's what the word esti- 

mate means, 

  

  

MR. KNEUBUHL: Guess... 

MR. SIGLER: No, not guess in the exact facts that may occur three 

months or a year later, But I wanted to bring up that point. If 
you want the facts and figures on the accuracy of Government esti- 

mates that you turn out and ask for them. 

  

  

CHAIRMAN: This fifty years experience of tax law in the United States 

as you stated this morning, Mr, Sigler, which shall be adopted in 
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American Samoa, I think the witness said that it is not pertinent in 
here, Will you comment on that? 

MR. SIGLER: Yes, I would be glad to, Mr. Chairman, 
  

The fifty years of experience in the tax law has this advantage, 
The United States has tried many different systems, The law has de- 
veloped over long periods’of years. Much has’ bean learned in the 
administration of that law, very imnortant in fifty years. What I 
intended in mentioning it was that every bit of experience can he 
profitable to you and I think this Bill incorporates the results of 
that experience. I believe the question by the witness a while ago 
is that there are extreme difficulties or some such words, in the 
administration of the tax laws in the United States, In my judge~ 
ment that is not the case, 

The United States Tax Laws are unusual, unmatched in any other part 
of the world in one point. And that is the individual citizen vo- 
luntarily assess himself in terms of his taxes to the Government, 
without any assistance of views other than themselves. It is? a 
selfpolicing system, Not your uniform police . I mean the systen 
works pretty much automatically for 95% of the people of the United 
States. That is an unusual record. It's unmatched anywhere else 

in the world, 

Now I don't want to give you the impression that there are no dif- 
ficulties in administering the tax laws because that would not be 
true either, There are difficulties. I could tell you that for the 
most part it involves persons or corporations with large, substan— 
tial income, Most people hire tax experts to handle their tax 
forms, But that's a very small percentage of the peonle. And those 

difficulties encountered in complex business relationshins, I think 
ought not to be related to the difficulties that are presented to 
the ordinary citizens, The ordinary citizen such as I,hawe h> tron 
ble.in the United States in filling out tax return; and payine is 

almost automatic. The few people that have difficulties are peonle 
with substantial income, 

Mr, Chairman, the second part of my comment on this part is that the 
value of experience over the last few vears in the United States, 
in American Samoa right now...ol'm sure that you and members of the 
committee are aware of the fact that the Government had a man down 
here from the United States Department of Commerce to make a study 
of the economics of the island, It!s called the Badger Renort, The 
report is here, only in its preliminary form and the finished ad- 
ditional copies are expected to come in this week, That report, 

however, reflects a thorough study of the economic conditions in 
American Samoa, And this is that, I'm sure that the conmittee 
knows, that sometime last fall the Government billed an economic ex~ 
pert, another lawyer, come down from the Treasury Department and the 
economic specialist from the Department of Commerce of the Govern 
ment, plus the assistance 2f a very large number of tax experts who 
have been working on tax laws for a good many years. Their combined 
experiences were used in drafting the law before you. 
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I mentioned that all of this will probably answer how the experience 
gained in administering the Federal laws for the last twenty. years 
can benefit you in American Samoa, It is my judgement that exnerts 
who spend most of their lives just knowing’ the Income Tax Laws 
have ideas that can be useful for you in making up your minds with- 
out difficulty. 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Kneubuhl. 
  

MR. KNEUBUHL: Mr. Chairman, it is so difficult to follow points when 
so many points are brought up at the same time in answer to a ques 
tion, But I wish to set back to Mr, Sigler's first remarks on the 
matter of this tax not being a difficult, correct me please if I'm 
wrong, this tax in the United States is not a difficnlt thing for 
the average person who is not in business, Is that correct, Mr, 
Sigler? 

  

MR. SIGLER: That is correct, 
  

MR. KNEUBUHL: It seems to me around income tax time in the ‘United 
States two’or three months before we start seeing in every town, in 
every city, in every small camp one, two,three shingles saying, "In- 
come Tax Forms Prepared Here," 

  

4 

For ten years after I got out of -school in the United States, 
starting working and pay income tax, that all of the people:-.that 
worked with me and earning a wage, and all of-my neishbors and my 

friends and neighbors in a typical American town, went to these 
places, to these accountants to prepare income tax returns, 

I'm sure that for some people, perhaps in Mr. Sigler's case, hets 
in Washington and is familiar with Internal Revenue Tax matters, he 
works with then everyday perhaps, and therefore to him it's nota 
enmplicated matter to fill up this income tax return and hand it in, 
But I say this, that for the average American citizen naying income 
taxes in the United States, thev do not understand how to fill out 
their income tax forms,’ and in my case for examnle, I tried one year 
to fill out my own form, to save the minimum that I had to pay this 
man of $50,00 for preparing my income tax return, and when I did 
this it cost me an additional $250,00 and possibly the cost of a 
penalty of a suit from the Government of the United States, So 
again I say that it is a commlicated thing for the average American 
to prepare his income tax return at the end of the year. 

Now, again I wish to disagree with Mr, Sigler, It is not a diffi- 
cult thing for the large companies and the large corporations, he+ 
cause in the case of most large comnanies and large corporations, 
they employ a tax accountant and tax lawyers; that they ray a salary 
the year round to keep up with their tax problems, and prepare their 
returns at the end of the year. It places no hardship on these 
businesses because it's part of their expense in doing’ business, 
Where the burden is and the hardshin is placed is on the average in= 
dividual wage eamer and salaried individuals such as vou are, my~ 
self, averase American citizens, 
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Another point I'd like to make is this. I, of all people, not 
knowing anything about income tax laws, not heing an attorney, will 
not say and come before you gentlemen, that the fifty years of tax 
experience in the U. 5. is lost. That is not the point that I am 
trying to make, I hope that you thoroughly understand this. My 
point is simply that we should have people, our people here in 
Samoa, best brains that we can possibly find in our little island, 
people that we bring in from the outside, that we pay for, not ne- 
cessarily people that the Government pays for,but people who will be 
objective on things that would be for the good of Samoa, that would 
help our island grow, and if these people decide that there’are many 
things in the Internal Revenue Code that are good for Samoa, and af-— 
ter it has been studied a leng time and deliberated by you gentle- 
men, many others here, then perhaps we cculd adent those things. 

I'm not saying that this isn't a good law, I say it's a good law if 
it's good for the United States of America, All I'm saying is we 
don't understand it here in Samoa and it is not a law that is tai- 
lored for here in Samoa. 

MR. SIGLER: Mr, Chairman just a brief remark just to keen the records 

straight, on the point of the number of people in the United Sta- 
tes who must have help in filling out their returns’ there  seem,.to 
develop a need for tax experts, Mr. Kneubuhl said, if .I recall, 
and I wish to be corrected if T have the wrong recollection, that 
most of the neople he knew had to use that kind of agent or help 
in filling out this retunr, We are again on an issue of personal 
judgement from personal experience, and my counter to a statement 
like that is that I know of a very large number of peonle in the 
United States, like for instance it extends over the entire coun- 
try, and I don't know of a single individual, not one, who stop 
for need of help froma tax expert in filling out his inooms tax 
return, Now the difference maybe in the people Mr. Kneubuhl knew 
is that they have large income, but the ordinary person that ph 
know of does not seek help, Now one other experience that you 
had, I believe you had two of them,on this issue the only way to be 
informed is to ask the Treasury Department for the number cf forms 
returned as showing the agent as among the vnaid returns, That 
number will be in terms of both. 

  

I should also like to say that, Mr, Kneubuhl is correct for a 
large corporation and most large business enterprie2s retain tax 
men on their staff on a salary, and for that reason they: dé not: 
encounter great difficulties, perhaps that's the wrong word,they 
encounter difficultires but they do hire tax accountants. I say 
the same thing here, the business and corporations in Aneriéan Sa- 
moa with substantial ititome may need to hire some help. I expect 
they will. But for the ordinary citizen of Samoa will not need 
any help. And this gets to the noint of the difference between 
the Samoan Bill that you have before you and the American Income 
Tax Law, Most citizens of Samoa will pay nothing more than 2% 
withholding on wages, That's all you need......for most Samoans, 

Now for another sinall group of Samoans they will have to fill 
out the income tax return because they are not on wages. They have 
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income because they have their own business, perhaps they sell 

agricultural produce and have some income of that sort, They’ may 
have to fill out returns, That group of people will not, I'm 
guessing and mo.% of you people know better than I, including the 

gentlemen of the committee know better than I, that that-will not 
be a large number either. The other group of people, still a 
smaller group with very large income will have to have help in 
filling out their returns, It seems to me that this is a simple 
one. The issue is does the ordinary Samoan who earns'less than a 
thousand: dollars, fifteen hundred dollar income a year, pays 2% 
wage tax, this appiies to the ordinary worker which gets his wages 

on basis of weekly, bi-weekly salaries. The second issue is to 
amass any one man or corporation which earns thirty, forty, fifty 
thousand doliars income a year, should they pay income tax, I 
think they should. I think it's only fair, Income tax paid by a 
person with that much income ought to be the same tax as taxes 
they pay in the United States, ‘That is the decisive issue in 
this Bill, ‘A very small, modest tax for ordinary citizens with 
little money, and a graduated tax that goes up quite steeply for 
those with large income, 

MR. OPELLE: There's just one point, if I may comment on Mr. Sigler's 
statement that he just made, Mr, Sigler keeps referring to oné 
tax, and keeps forgetting the imnort tax which, like income “tax, 
is a different type oi tax,. And that's'a very important. and exnen- 
sive tax for the Samoan people, We are talking about two taxes in 
this Bill. There is the 2% tax that all Samoan neople will be pay- 
ing on their wages and much complicated for many Samoan people 
that have little stores andthings like that in filling out income 
tax returns, But there’s another tax, There's a tax....imnort tax 

and that's in this Bill, too, So actually two taxes are involved, 
Not just one; and in the United States the same person with the 
Same income as the Samoan person here of low salary would pay no 
income tax whatsoever, But here he'll be paying 24 plus import 
tax, excessively applied to necessities like automobiles, necessi- 
ties like beds, like furnitures, all the things that people want 
here and deserve, The standard of living is involved, 

  

Secondly, Mr, Sigler has mentioned the expert advice that has been 
sent down from Washington D, C, in economics -from the Commerce De— 
partment, a man from the Treasury Department, and they have a tax 
lawyer here to bring this Bill, These are all people who'do not 
live in American Samoa, They come here for.e.o.1 don't know if I 
know whom he's referring to, People come and go every day. Thev 
would naturally see ‘things as they see them in the United States 
with different conditions, But here in American Samoa they do not 
live here like you and me. Here we are, faced with problems of an 
economy that has be... retarded over a long period of time, for 
which the United States Government has some responsibility, Now, 
it would seem to me that a person living here, faced with the pro~ 
blems here, would have a better idea, at least a common idea of and 
about the problems involved, than someone visiting for a three 
weeks to form an opinion, Another fact is, although these 
people might be very versed in economy and in finance matters and 
tax matters, it's another thing to be a wage earner in American Sa- 
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MR, SIGLER: Mr. Chairman I want to inform the witness that I have not 
forgotten that we are talking about immort duty as well as income 
tax. JI thought that it would be more reasonahlé for the Committee 
to talk about them separately, rather than the fact of joining then 
together, The imnort duty is one of Samoa's revenue devices, in 
comparison to the income tax. It will raise much less monev than 
the income tax. So far as import duties are concerned, I think I 
made it clear to the Committee yesterday that in my judgement, the 
Committee should look at the duty list very carefully and that the 
Committee decide what kind of import duty they want, I have no 
particular feeling on whether import duty should be 50% or 25% on 
automobiles, cigarettes, or anything else, The important thing is 
that the duty is fixed by this Committee, by the Senate and by the 
Fono to raise enough money to run this Government. The duties have 
been returning in the neighborhood of half a million dollars a 
year, more or less, It will continue to return that amount of 
money o Now, if you want to change the duties from one place’to 
another place, why that is your privilege to do it that way,or 
which ever way you wantiil! 

  

If the imnort duties are not changed by this Fono, then they con— 
tinue just as they have been in the nast, It will be perfectly al- 
right if you want to leave the import duties just as they have 
been, The point that'’I am making is,that'that is not the important 
provision in this Bill, If you want to leave the imvort duties 
alone, I'd leave them alone, They will continue just as they are 
today. The important provision in this Bill is the Income Tax Law, 
The issue on Income Tax Law is simnle, There is a question whether 
the experts.....the right experts have been hired to come dow 
here, The suggestion has been made that additional experts, if 
they were borught in, would have more common sense than the ones 
that have been here, Perhans so, You can't get a froun of experts 
together without getting a difference of opinion. The experts that 
drew this Bill, and I do not-include myself, I am talking about 
those that made a study of it, felt that the 24 ware tax was the 
only kind of tax that probably the Samoans will pay, Now, the sug— 
gestion has been made that we leave it as they do in the United 
States where no one pays the 2 tax, That is correct. This is a 
provision that is tailor made for Samoa, If we will apply the or— 
dinary United States Income Tax in Samoa, I'd hazard a guess ‘that 
about 90% could not be touched. This is the proposal that is tai- 
lor made to tax most Samoans, That is the issue for this Committee 
to decide first, and for the Fono to decide last. It is up to you 
to decide whether you want to have a simnle kind of a tax, 

The other part of that tax is exactly the kind of income tax that 
is paid in the United States, and there again I suggest that any— 
body in Samoa that has a salary, let's say $8000.00 and there are 
many which nearly make that much, That person pavs tax like a 
United States citizen pays if he makes eight thousand dollars, The 
citizen of the United States has to pay his tax, and part of his 
tax money comes right down to Samoa to supnort this Government, 
And the question is, should the citizen in Samoa who has the same 
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amount of income pay the same tax. 

KNGUBUHL: Mr, Chairman, I wish that I were an attorney so that TI 
  

could speak in a certain way and discuss these matters with Mr, 
Sigler, and have this Fono listen to our discussion, I am >not 
a tax attorney. I wish.I were at this time but I think perhaps it 
would be more enlightening... .not enlightening but perhans it will 
contribute something to your better understanding of this Tax Bill, 

  

CHAIRMAN: Any one who has a question? 

SENATOR FAIIVAE: Mr, Kneubuhl, I had a net question all morning, 
  

MR. 

nursed it throurh.....but now it was accidentally answered a few 
minutes ago. I have one other little question here though; but 
first I thought you based your oninion about this law being so com= 

plicated, And because we can't read that book in fifteen dayseceee 
but now we understand, My question is this....as you saida few 
minutes ago that this is a good law, In other words, you feel that 
we should go ahead and work on it, or work on it after making 
amendments, JI want to understand your answer so that it will be 
necessary for me to decide on the fact in debating by the senators, 

KNEUBUHL: Senator, I think there are two parts to your - question. 
  

And if I understand correctly, I got the last part, But the first 
part of your question I would anpreciate your repeating that for 
me, please, 

SENATOR FATIVAE: You mentioned a few minutes ago that this Bill is ale 
  

MR. 

right, What I want to Know if you feel that we should go ahead and 
werk on the Bill, or work on the Bill after making amendments. 

KNEUBUHL: Thank you very much, I feel this way. I feel that 
  

every law that is passed should be a fair and just law for the 
people... I'm not an attorney, but it would seem to me that most of 
our laws in the United States and laws of most countries are based 
on justice, equality, and fairness, I said, I believe you may have 
misunderstood me a little bit, Senator, I said that we should 
study and prepare a tax bill. The idea of taxes is not a bad ‘idea, 
tc earn a little bit for us here in Samoa to heln our fellow men, 
to help our Government. We don't object to this, TI, asa  vusi- 
nessman, I as an individual citizen of American Samoa, don't object 
to this. I'm not sure that all of us here don't object. But I 
feel that we should not take a Code,..,.and that's what we aré 
doing. We are taking this freat complex this the tax attorneys, 
tax experts, cannot understand comnletely. And we are _ setting it 
to come to our economy, to our peonle who aren't anvwhere near as 

advanced economically, socially, educationally as the people of the 
United States and imoose this complicated law on us, I say that it 
is possible that there may be things in this ‘law that would be food 
for Samoa, But who knows, until we study it, and until people’ here 
look at it; people from the outside look at it. © Until time has 
been given to deliberate on this imnortant matter, I do not think 
anyone should pass hasty judgement on somethim so important, 

CHAIRMAN: Any other question? 
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SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: I have one in mind, 
  

CHAIRMAN: Senator Lagafuaina,. 
  

SENATOR LAGAFUAINA: Mr, Mike Kneubuhl, what about this law....this tax™ 
law which you want in Samoan instead of this 24 wage income tax in 
Samoa? 

  

MR. KNEUBUHL: Thank you Senator, I think, my own opinicn is, Senator, 
that we should not pass any portion of this Bill. Ido not feel 
that we have been given time to adequately study it. ‘Also I do not 
feel this Bill has been tailored for the needs of our people here 
in Samoa, It appears to me that it is a very hastily prepared 
thing by peonle in Government in the United States and here without 
consulting the people of Samoan and people outside of Government 
here. And I think that we should have a tax law, But something 
that we can prepare ourselves, and develop ourselves. But no part 
of this Bill.....it is my hope for the good of Samoa, that no part 
of this law should be passed because, after all, we are adopting 
this law, or most of this law; and there are only three books ike 
this in American Samoa today, It's almost inconceivable for me to 
believe that any sroup of people would come up before the Fono and 
present a Bill without presenting each and every one of you this 
book. From here, from here to here all apply to American Samoa, 
About five hundred and forty pages......this part of the book to 
this part of the book applies to American Samoa or a good many 
portions in it, 

  

SIGLER: Mr. Kneubuhl, the number of pages in that book that apply 
to American Samoa is nothing like what you just indicated. 
  

KNEUBUHL: Mr. Sigler, before this is interpreted for the benefit 
of the other members of the Fono, I would like to say that it is 
the expressed opinion of an attorney....emy father hapvens’to be an 
attorney, as well as other attorneys who are on the island, that it 
definitely does, 

  

: 

SIGLER: There's a difference of opinion, Mr. Kneubuhl, .and it is 
my opinion that. it is not. The Income Tax provision in that 
though, the Income Tax provisions are nothimg like the number of 
pages which you just referred to, I didn't mean that to dispute 
you, I merely indicate it as my opinion that the statement is not 
accurate, 

  

MR. KNEUBUHL: I maintain that the statement is accurate, Thank you 

Senator, that is my answer to your question, 
  

CHAIRMAN: Any other question? Well, this Committee,.....it's time to 
discuss its findings based on the information from the different 
witnesses. I do not know what the conclusion of the Committee, but 
if we make any decision we'll try to force that issue to the Senate 
to be adopted, But, suppose, that the Senate, this is my personal 
opinion, I do not know about Committee members, supnose this United 
States Tax Law to be used asa reference, because none of us at 
present knows what the subsection or this different part in here, 
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but in case that the,...take this for example, Section 18,0401, 
which says Income Tax Laws Enforced,...5...'lhe Income Tax Laws en- 
forced in the United States of America and those which may here- 
after be enacted, where not clearly inapplicable or incompatible 
with the intent of this section are hereby adopted by American Sa- 
moa." So this shall be adopted by American Samoa provided that the 
Legislature shall pass it and propagate it. Sirs, what is your 
personal opinion about it? I cannot say this but that is my per- 

sonal opinion, 

MR. KNEUBUHL: Mr, Opelle would like to say a few words, but before he 
does I'd like tosay something, Mr. Chairman, According to the 

sentence that you just read, if it is passed by this Fono and ap— 

proved by the Governor, it is my understanding that we will essen- 

tially adopt, and I believe this has come up before through other 

witnesses, we will adopt the United’ States Internal Revenue Code of 

1954. It is also my understanding, and I believe that this was a 
point that was brought up this morning. In fact I believe that it 

was you Mr. Chairman, who asked the guestion. What would happen in 
the event that the Treasury Department of the United States adopted 
an amendment to this Code, I would like to answer to that question 
if I may, by saying that anything that they adopt in the United 

States Treasury as an amendment to this Internal [Revenue Code, 

automatically becomes the Samoa Income Tax Bill. It automatically 
becomes law in Samoa, and the Fono would not be asked to deliberate 
on it or anything. And in fact, further to that, they have in the 
United States, different districts, and one court of anpeal in the 
United States misht reverse a part of this Internal Revenue Code 
but we in Samoa do not have this privilege. Anything that is 
adopted by the Treasury of the United States automatically becomes 
law to us. The meaning of that, I'm sure Mr, Chairman, can go a 
lot further in the 2% that is written here, or the other parts of 
this Income Tax, if they decide in the Department of Interior _in 
the United States to pass an amendment it says that the Samoan Tax 
for wages will not be 10% and pass it in this Code adopted hy the 
Treasury Department, the Fono will have no voice on it and it auto— 

matically becomes law, 

  

MR. SIGLER: Mr. Ghairman, may I make a brief comment? I believe the 
witness is mistaken ‘in his interpretation of the law, First, the 
Bill before you adopts the Income Tax provisions of the Internal 
Revenue Code, not the entire Code. The Internal Revenue Code of 
1954 has many provisions in it that are not income tax, They are 

excise taxes, estate taxes, gift taxes, a whole array. The Bill 
before you does not adopt any of these. It adopts only the Income 
Tax provisions, That is the reason why I must question your state- 

ment thoroughly, 

  

Secondly, you are mistaken in saying that if the Interior Denart— 
ment or the Treasury Department adopts a law.....they cannot adopt 
any law, The Congress of the United States may adopt a law and 

that's the only body that can adopt the laws with respect to the 
United States. if you meant to say that Congress adopts a law 
changing the Income Tax vrovisions and that that would apply to Sa- 

moa, you are correct. As indicated earlier the principle reason 
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for that is, Congress at the present time is considering a reduce 
tion in Income Tax Law for all of the United States. If Congress 
enacts a new law that you don't like, all you have to do is amend 
the law and say it doesn't apply here, 

Thirdly, Congress could not raise the tax on wages to 10% in the 
way that is suggested. I don't want to say flatly that Conzress 
can enact any laws that it wants to for Samoa in regards to this 
Fono, if the Congress wants to, But sneaking on the comnlexity of 

this Bill, Congress will legislate onlv on a new form hasis for all 
of the United States, If Congress has not involved a wage tax, the 
wage tax is the special tax in New York considering here. It's not 

in the Internal Nevenue Code, It is not part of the Internal Re- 
venue Code, Incidentally it is a special tax proposed for Ameri- 
can Samoa, The Congress will not be changing it at all, at least 
unless it wants to exercise its powers through the Fono, But the 
kind of tax the Congress would enact is the tax for income’ general- 
ly, where everyhody pays. The Congress changes that law, that's 
not the wage tax, If it chanees that law, it applies automatical-— 
ly to Samoa, And the reason, in Samoa is the immediacy of tax re- 
duction this year, I hope that Congress will pass it. 

Mi. OPELLE: Mr, Chairman, 
  

CHAIKMAN: Mr, Opelle, 
  

MR. OFELLE: I just wanted to comment on Mr, Sigler's emphasis on the 
possibility that Congress might reduce the income tax in the United 
States which would, of course, affect here. They are soing to cet 
this, there's a possibility of course that they would do that next 
year, or this present year if they consider it very shortly. But I 
believe that Mr. Sigler will agree that over the years that start 
ing from a very small percentage of income tax, that there has been 
a progressing increase, and if the reduction does take place, it 
will be the first real reduction in a long, long, time. And this 
increase has had a very heavy effect on industry and emnloyment, 
Does the fact that the investment into plant development ,thines 
like that which create jobs which is fhe most imnortant in Samoa... 
eceseeiS employment.......lhat is the thing that we have to consi« 
der that power to move ahead..,...create -additional  ethployment, 
and whether we're speaking of a small Samoan bush store, or we're 
speaking of a store in town which employs neople too, or corporate 
taxes that might increase the nossibility of increasing emnloyment 
and job onnortunities, Those things could have an adverse affect 
upon our economy, Our economy is not as developed as the United 
States. I just wanted to make that point, 

  

CHAIRMAN: Any further question? (no question) 
  

Unless Mr. Kneubuhl and Mr. Opelle want to say something further, 
I would like to take this time on behalf of the Committee members 
to express our sincere thanks for coming down here and exnressing 
their views with respect to this Bill. This Committee will take 
every step to consider this Bill in a way that we can see that will 
meet the interest of the Samoan people. Now this Committee will 
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not make the final say, but we are going to recommend to the Senate 
what should he done with this Bill. Thank you very much for 
coming, and we'll be hanny to have you further some other time if 
we need some more information, 

MR, KNEUBUHL: Well, Mr. Chairman, we also, Bob and myself, would like 
to thank you, Mr. Sigler, other senators and members of your’ Com 
mittee, and want to wish you the very hest of luck and success, as 
citizens of Samoa and not just as businessmen here, As we will 
live all our lives as you are, this matter must he considered very 
carcfully, and we feel very good and confident that this will be 
done, 

  

Thank you very much. 

  

MR, SIGLER: Mr, Chairman, I would like to have my word of appreciation 
as I think this has heen an excellent hearing. I have 

here who have exchanged Views without * any 
animosity, I feel the hearing has been profitable to me for under— 
standing the needs of Samoa and I am real pleased in the way the 
hearing came out. 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you very much, Mr, Sigler. We never let our private 
families in now because we need a set of facts. (laughter), 
This Committse will recess, 
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THIRD DAY 
  

January 18, 1963 
  

CHAIRMAN: Our Committee hearing will please come to order, Our * first 
witness today will be Mr. Van Camp Jr, 

  

Mr. Van Camp, will you state your name and occunation before pro- 
ceeding with your testimony? 

MR. VAN CAMP: Mr, Chairman, my name is Van mp dr., President of the 
Van Camp Seafood Comapny, This company is owned by four thousand 
people. 

  

The ourpose of my annearnace is to give you,the Chairman’ and mem— 
bers of this Committee, our feeling regarding the Corporate Income 
Tax section of your new Income Tax Law, 

I would like, before saying this, to give you a very brief history 
of our company doing business here in American Samoa. 

Ten years ago, it appeared to us that there is a possibility of 
establishing a tuna business, a successful tuna business in Ame-— 
rican Samoa. In the early stages of the development’ of this 
business here, we have met many difficulties. In fact, in the 
first few years of our business here in American Samoa, we lost 
almost half a million dollars. 

In view of the many problems that there are in starting a pidnser~ 

ing industry in any area of the world, we were exempted from many 
of the taxes, or most of the taxes that you had here to help us 
get our business going on a profitable basis, and to make it suc— 
cessful. During this period of time, we have develoned ir con— 
junction with the helv of all of you neonle here and the supvlies 
of fish, a good industry for American Samoa. 

Our business today is a profitable business, and now we feel that 
now that we have gone through this period of time of troubles in 
development, and that we are now making what we would say a good 
profit in our business venture here, that we shovld pay income tax 

to the Government of American Samoa to help supnort the island's 
economy. We agree that our company should pay cornorate income 
tax in American Samoa. We are in business in other narts of the 
world in addition to American Samoa. I would like to cite maybe 
one or two examples. We are doing business at Sierra-Leone in 
Africa. We came in there under tax advantage to attemnt to start 

a tuna business in Africa, We had been granted a tax exemntion in 
Africa, As soon as this period of time has exnired we will exnect 

to pay the going corporate income tax rate in Sierra-Leone which, 
incidentally, is almost as high as the United States. 

We expect that in any country in which we do business, we even- 
tually will pay corporate income tax. It is necessary for the 
support of the economy of these countries that large cornorations 

like ourselves heln their economy in every way nossible. 
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I want you to please remember that I am speaking to -you strictly 
as a representative or the President of a corporation, and I am 
not representing any of oar employees, These people are free to 
speak for themselves whatever they wish. We are not trying to 
tell them anything at all about what to say, lf any of them 
speaks, they should give their own feelings straight from ~the 
heart. I am only speaking from the standpoint of representative 
of our corporation regarding our income tax, To make a long story 
short, we are not objecting to corporate income tax provision of 
your proposed tax law, 

To give you an example of the size of the contribution that we 
may be making to the people of Samoa or the Government of Samoa in 
the future, JI would like to say that had this law, the proposed 
law, been in effect last year, we would have paid approximately 
one half million dollars to the Government of american Samoa, 

We feel that American ‘Samoa has been very good to our company. 
And for these reasons we feel that we should pay corporate tax to 
the Government of American Samoa. This is really all I have to 
say but I would welcome questions from any of you. 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Van Camp, with your business experience and as President 
of this corporation, what is your personal feeling. when this In- 
come Tax Law becomes effective in here....will it be a cause to 
stop industries from coming? 

  

MRe VAN CAMP; This is a rather difficult question to answer, But a 

will say this....-.that you do have, I believe a proposed Indus— 
trial Incentive Act that you are about’to consider, This should 
take care of any new industry coming,in, and give them some incen- 
tive so that they can get over this difficult period that you have 

when you are develoning something that is completely new and itis 

never been there before. It's a big help. 

  

I'd have to say that if you didn't have any tax that it would be 
more attractive. But it is not really very practical for you 

not to have tax, because you have to......-.-.lLarge companies that 
come in to establish business will eventually expect to pay tax to 

the community. 

CHAIRMAN: Any questions from any other member of this Committee? 
  

  

SENATOR LAOLAGI: I would like to ask a question. (translation) 

CHAIRMAN: Senator Laolagi. 
  

SENATOR LAOLAGI: (translation) Some important points were 
raised yesterday by some businessmen to which the Legislative Coun- 
sel answered. JI would like to know Mr. Van Camp's feeling about 
these important points, 

  

INTERPRETER: It is difficult to translate without repeating the same 
question, 
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MR. VAN CAMP: It's really difficult to answer that question with a 
guess, because there.........because in every — question there are 
several opinions on it, Maybe they're right and I'm wrong; maybe 
I'm right and they're wrong. You don't know for sure on these 
things, But I'm appropriate in saying this from the standpoint of 
our company, how we feel, and how we react to it. Now somebody 
else's reaction might be different; but we had some help in the 
beginning to do this. © And now that we have a good business going, 
we feel that we should, and can, pay taxes. Naturally, if you had 
no tax, it's much more stimulating. There's no question about 
that. Byt that does not necessarily mean that there'll be no...... 
I really don't like to try and answer the question, 

SENATOR LAOLAGI: Thank you. 
  

  

CHAIRMAN: Any other question? Mr, Sigler, would you like to comment? 

MR. SIGLER: Mr. Chairman, I think I might add something to help the 
senator if you like. Mr. Van Camp, I believe the question in the 
minds of most of the Committee based upon our hearing yesterday 
could be phrased like this, When Van Camp came to American Samoa, 
it was given a tax exemption in the form of exemotion from all 
taxes for the period of transition, The present tax exemption law 
which is on the books allows the Governor to grant exemptions at 
the same time, to new industries that have come in and have quali- 
fied. dAnd I think the Committee would like to know whether you 
think that the tax exemptions in the form of exemntion from taxes 

under the Industrial Incentives Act might......1 realize you can't 
say in all instances, might be sufficient incentive to encourage 

new industries to come here, regardless of the existence of the 
income tax. 

  

MR. VAN CAMP: I would have to answer that question with a ves. DEC, 
we have been exempted from taxes in other parts of the world, and 
then later on you start paying a cornorate income tax. Let's say 
it would be, speaking for myself, it would be an incentive to us, 
to our corporation, 

  

CHAIRMAN; I wish to take this time on behalf of the Committee members - 
to thank you very much, Mr. Van Camp, for the information in regard 
with this Committee that will be helpful when we consider, at the 
conclusion, what we recommend. Thank you very much. 

  

MR. VAN CAMP: Thank you. 
  

CHAIRMAN: The next witness shall be Mr. Peter Reid. (Chief Lealaifua- 
neva ) 

  

Mr. Peter Reid, this Committee would like to hear your views with 
respect to this tax law, this Income Tax Law. 

MR. REID: (Translation) 
I want to thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of your Committee for 
the ovportunity you have given me, that I may exvress my views with 
regard to this Tax Bill that is before you. 
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This Tax Law will affect the future generations of American Samoa, 
This law is written in 465 pages, as I gather from Mr, Sigler's 
comment yesterday. Now if these 465 pages are translated into our 
language, I would guess it would run from fifteen hundred to two 
thousand pages. I am sure that it will take a much longer time for 
you to read and study those fifteen hundred to two thousand pages 
of Samoan translation before you can understand everything that is 
contained in the law. 

There is an article in the January lth. issue of Newsweek about 
the proposed cut in income tax by President Kennedy in the United 
States Congress. In this same article, Mr. Wilbur Mills, Chairman 
of the congressional committee that is similar to your Committee, 

expresses the fact that it will take them about six months to dis- 
cuss the bill on tax reduction. I brought this article to show you 
my discomfort and unhappiness in the manner with which this Bill is 
being brought before you. The Governor gives you a bill and asks 
you to pass without giving you the comnlete law for your considera- 
tion. I bring this to you because it is in your hands which the 
good and the bad of Samoa in the future lies, 

For the economy of American Samoa, we have one hope and that is the 
bringing in of new businesses to American Samoa. You know and I 
know that we cannot denend on agriculture and fruits of the land 
because it is not adequate for the support of the Government. Now 
if your Cormittee passes the Bill and advice the Senate to do the 
same, I am sure that new industries will not want to come here. I 
shall speak later on with regard to Mr. Van Camn's corments. 

Without new industries unemployment will surge. Every time I drive 
into. town I see a good number of Samoans outside Van Camn's gate 
looking for work, The first thing to remember is the un and coming 
generations of Samoa, Without new industry we have no means with 
which to absorb the uv and coming generations of Samoa. We will 
remain what we are today, yet there is a need for Sama to vro= 
gress, 

As I look at this Bill, I feel that the implication >of the way it 
is being proposed is that the Governor has no confidence in the Sa— 
moans and the Fono to deliberate and decide on such a big issue. 
He does not feel that we are qualified to see and decide on ‘the 
whole thing, 

The important thing in my mind with regard to this pronosition is 
the qualification of us Samoans to struggle with our Government. 
It is true that we lack finances and that we have to denend on the 
good will from Washington, Just the same, it doesn't sit well with 
me, and I'm sure with you too, to say or imply that Samoa does not 
know how to enact good laws for its Government. This is indeed the 
meaning of the Governor's action, giving you just part of the pro- 
posed law, and not the whole Bill, 

There should be taxes in American Samoa. I certainly do not  bject 
to that, and I'm sure that anybody with a right mind feels the same 
way. But Samoa should write its own tax law, and not the law from 
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outside of Samoa, You must remember that the Internal Revenue Code 
was designed for the Federal Government, and life in the United 
States is so much different from our life down here, Thev have 
cars and televisions in America, They have a vast array of thines. 
big things. And I am sure that if Samoa would draft a law for the 
United States, they would tell us where to go, 

The Fono should make its-own tax laws, There should also be tax 
experts, like Mr. Sigler, or other lawyers hired to help the Fono 

in drafting a tax law for Samoa, instead of adopting a Federal Law. 

The Congress of the United States depends uncon the Fono as the re~ 
presentative voice of Samoa, This is why it would be unfortunate 
if you decide to adopt this Bill without understanidng all of what 
is in the Internal Revenue Code; because the Congress will deduce 
that Samoa is not qualified and is inferior, 

It is true that the Governor, by virtue of Constitutional grant, 
has the veto power, If the Fono decides to reject this Bill, the 
Governor has that power to Overeride your decision. However, if 
the Governor uses that veto power and proveed to present the re- 
jected Bill to Washington, the Fono still has a chance to ery to 
Washington since this law will affect the future of Samoa. There 
are also friends of Samoa in Washington who can loby against the 
Governor's action, That is why the Fono is important and respon- 
sible. 

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: (Translation) Mr, Chairman and the hon— 
orable Committee, I would like to clarify a point with Leala for 
the understanding of the Committee, Is it your belief that if-this 

Legislature rejects this Bill and the Governor over-rides it, the 
business people who want to come into Samoa can argue against such 
action since it is not the will of the people? 

  

MR. REID: Thank you for the question. That is exactly the gist of my 
statement. If the Fono decides to reject this Bill and the Govern- 
or decides to use his Constitutional power, not only will the local 
businessmen g® t0°. Washington, but outside businessmen who want 
to come into Samoa as well. 

  

SENATOR MULITAUAOPELE: Then you really believe that the Legislature 
should not be afraid to reject this Bill? That if Samoa wishes to 
reject it, then reject it? That there are those who will support 
the wish of Samoa against the Governor's use of his power if he 
does? (translation) . 

  

MR. REID: Yes, that is my belief. 
  

If the Chairman and the honorable Committee pleases, I would “like 
to finish my comments before we proceed with the questions. 

CHAIRMAN: Proceed, Mr, Reid. 
  

MR. REID: I shall now speak with reference to Mr. Van Camp's testimony, 
It is very good to know that Mr. Van Camn and the Van Camn comnany 
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does not object to paying cornorate income tax. Van Camp should 
agree to pay corporate income tax, Afterall, they have made a lot 
of money in Samoa. But the Committee must remember that Van Camp 

lost more than a half a million dollars at the start of its busi- 
ness. It is a big comnany and has enough capital to cushion the 
loss. But what about those other companies who want to come here? 
Do not limit your consideration to just one tyne of industry. 
There are other types of industries and work that we can have here. 
We hear a lot ot talk about a brassiere factory. It is without a 
doubt that they are still considering coming to Samoa, ‘However, if 
and when the Fono shall decide to adopt this Tax Bill, they might 
decide not to come here afterall, because they do not have the 
backing of millions of doilars in case they should lose some monay 
during the problematic period of starting a pioneering industry. 
You must remember that the Van Camp company has been here for quite 
some time and has grown business roots in Samoa, The case is not 
the same with new industries that can contribute to the economic 
well being of Samoa. I shall stop here with regard to Mr.,Van 
Camp's statement. 

As I understand the Industrial Incentive Act, the Governor, and 
only the Governor, has the nower to decide what kind of industry or 
company can come to Samoa. Indeed the Fono has no say. You should 
remember that the Governor is the only person who has the "yes" and 
"no" say to any comnany that wants to come in. 

That concludes my comments, However, I would like, if the Chairman 
and the honorable Committee pleases, to have my statements printed 
in English. With your permission I would like the Interpreter to 
translate it into English in order that you can assuredly under- 
stand what I am trying to say. Also, with your permission Mr. 

Chairman, I would like to reprise my conments in English. 

(Mr. Reid reads in English) 

The proposed Tax Bill for American Samoa which you have not: seen, 
is a law made for a society with an economic status one hundred 
times that of American Samoa. Also this law was made for a popu- 

lation of a hundred and fifty million people. To superimpose a law 
gaged for one society or another and say it is a good law for the 

latter society is absolutely false, 

Those of you on the Committee who have been in the United States 
certainly must agree with me that the money difference between the 
United States and American Samoa is like day and night. The evi- 
dence of this difference in economics is that the budget of the 

United States is rinety billion collars as comnmared to ours of ten 

million. If the Fono adopts this tax law, I'm certain the economic 
growth of this island would come to a complete stop, No new indus— 
try will entertain coming to American Samoa, 

In conclusion, I ask the Fono that in view of the importance of 
this Bill for the future of American Samoa,we should not entertain 
any thought of making amendments . to this Bill withsut first 
obtaining a clear knowledge of its contents and weighing the ef- 
fects on the economy of American Samoa, In refusing to endorse 
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this Bill, you are making the Department of the Interior aware that 

any taxation law for Samoa should be written expressly, expressing 
the desire of the citizens of American Samoa and not by any experts 
who have spent their lives in the United States and think that af- 
ter one, two or three weeks of visiting American Samoa they know it 
all, 

We in this room must agree that the United States Internal Revenue 
Code of 1954 must be good for the United States or the public opi- 

nion of the citizens of the United States would most certainly 
change this law. This law is tailored to the needs of the United 
States and not for any other country in the world let alone a small 
island. You should, in all fairness for the citizens of American 
Samoa, kill this Bill and petition Washington to allow lawyers and 
tax experts, could be Mr. Sigler, to come down here and help you 
write a tax law comparable to the needs of American Samoa and not 
the United States, (translation) 

(original in Samoa) Well, that concludes what JI had wanted to 

present before you, Mr. Chairman and the honorable Committee, 

CHAIRMAN: Before Mr. Sigler, the Legislative Counsel, will comment to 
your information, Mr, Peter Reid, I want to make this announcement 
for the spectators. Mr. Buck Huff will be our next witness follow- 

ing Mr. Peter Reid. This public hearing will be closed on Monday 
and probably the Governor shall be the last witness; and whosoever 
is interested to hear that last witness can be here, However, the 

time has not been set yet. Mr. Sigler, will you comment? 

  

MR. SIGLER: Thank you Mr. Chairman, I have only a few comments and TI 
shall try to make them brief, I think Mr. Reid has given a very 
constructive and forceful statement of his oninion,. And I'm sure 
he speaks for many other peonle in American Samoa. My comments are 
designed to emphasize certain points that I think the Committee 
need to consider, 

  

My first point is this. Much has been said about the number of 
pages in the Internal Revenue Code, I have not counted them, so I 
cannot offer the firm statement that the witness offered, I can 
give you my assurance that if the four hundred and sixty five pages 

relating to income, and I do not know whether there are that many 
PAZCSeeeeeset Can five you my assurance that they would not be 

counting fifteen hundred pages in the course of translation. 

My second point is ‘thdt the witness said that the Bill now before 
your Senate was initiated in Washington and submitted to you by the 

Governor, rather than a Bill that you wrote and initiated here in 
the Senate. I.....the point that I want to bring to your attention 
is, this is the normal procedure in draftinr tax legislation in the 
United States. The President of the United States formulates a tax 
proposal. The President in that sense is comnarable to the Govern— 
or here. The President submits his tax proposal to the Congress of 
the United States, conrress hearings are held. You are holding 

hearings here in just the same way that the Committee in the United 
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States Congress hold their hearings. It's the function of this 
Committee to consider and evaluate the recommendations of the Gov- 
ernor and assume ultimate responsibility to decide whether the Gov- 

ernor's recommendations are to be accepted or rejected, My point 

is that this is done in the Congress of the United States and the 
same procedure is appropriate here, 

To restate the point in very simple words, it is the function of 
the Executive, inthis case the Governor, to propose and suggest 
legislations to the Lerislature, the Fono. It is the function of 
the Fono to decide whether those surrestions are good or bad ones, 

The mere fact that the Executive, the Governor, sursests the leris- 

lation should not mean any reflection at all on the Governor's opi- 
nion or on the ability of the Fono. I would not submit recommenda— 
tions for your consideration if he did not think that you were ahle 
to consider them and make un your own minds about whether they are 
good or ones. 

My next comment is this. I believe the testimony a moment ago was 
to the fart that the Fono would fail in its duty if it enacts this 

Tax Bill without understanding what it says. I completely agree, 
I think the Fono would fail in its duty if it took that kind of ac- 
tion. JI hope that during the course of this hearing the Fono will 
completely understand what this Tax Bill is all about. Now on that 
point, at the risk of boring you, I should like to point out that 
none of the discussions has involved the provisions of this Bill, 
the basic provisions.....what does the Bill do, There hasn't been 
any discussion on that. As I pointed out to your Committee before, 
Mr, Chairman, that the first thing this Bill does is not in the In- 
ternal Revenue Code at all. It imposes a 2% wage tax. That's. “a 
simple provision. Anybody can read it, Anybody can understand it. 
It's there waiting to be seen. I can't see anything complicated 
about it, 

INTERPRETER: Tax on wares? 
  

MR. SIGLER: Tax on wages, On the income of people who have a high in-- 

come, not the lower wages of the ordinary Samoan employee. Any- 
person in Samoa who has an income around three, four, five thousand 
dollars or even ten thousand dollars, this Bill imposes a tax on 
their income, and that's the second thing that it does, 

  

Now one comment on that, The Income Tax Provision in this book im- 
poses that tax on income in one page. One page, right here. That 
is the complete imposition of that tax, That is a simple provi- 
sion, I tried to explain it before by indicating how the tax would 
apply to a five thousand dollar income and five exemptions, We 
went through thet the other day. It ‘is a little involved, but my 
comment is that's what the Bill does, and I think the Committee 
should consider and debate whether td-impose 4 tary on the incomé of 
A person with.that amount of money.. ‘I Buegest that the dJomnittee 

should consider the problem in this light. If a versdn, an vindivi- 
dual in Samoa, has an income of $10,000.00, has that much money, 
pay income tax or should he continue as it is now and pay nothing; 

To take an even more extreme case, if anyone on this island is 
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earning fifty thousand dollars a year, should he pay any portion of 
it to the Government to help run the Government or should he pay 
nothing, 

MRe REID: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Sigler's comments miss the point of my 
statement, l-am not objecting to having a tax in Samoa, As I 
stated before, I believe there should be income tax for Samoa. Tf 
didn't touch the 2% wage tax because it is involved, yet Mr, Sigler 
is bfinging it un. 

  

I did not mean, as Mr. Sigler implies, that the Samoan translation 
of the Bill is huge. I meant how it is printed.....two sections, 
but not the combined compilation like that big book. That is what 
I meant by fifteen hundred to two thousand pages, mimeographed, as 
it is usually done here, 

As to Mr, Sigler's statement that the Governor drew this Bill as is 
usually done in Washington in the case of the President of the Uni- 
ted States, I am sure the Governor did not draw this Bill. It was 
extracted from that book, If he read the Internal Revenue Code, 
the Samoan people should read it also, (translation) 

MR. SIGLER: Mr, Chairman I didn't interrupt Mr. Reid in the middle of 
his presentation, I was asked to give my comments, May I_ go 
ahead? 

  

- 

The third point I want to call to the Fono's attention is, the 
third part of the Tax Bill is the tax on corporation income. That 
is the subject Mr. Van Camp's testimony reported. The provision of 
the Tax Law provides for a tax of 52% of the net profit of a corpo- 
ration doing business in American Samoa. Mr.‘Van Camp indicated 
that if they had had to pay that tax last year, it would have been 
one half million dollars. He also indicated that he had had loses 
the previous years buthe had had the advantage of th Tax Incentive 
Law, so he was not hurt. © But now that he had had the advantage of 
the Tax Incentive Law for, I think for seven years, he is not ob} 
jecting to paying taxes, It's true and it is proper to point out 
that if industry starts it will be helped by the tax exemption. 
That is what the Tax Incentive Law provides for, Any new industry 
coming to this island, should annly to the Governor, and if it qua- 
lifies receives a tax exemption, That means exemption from the In- 
come Tax, If it needs that kind of exemption, the Governor’could 
grant the exemption from the Income Tax that is in this Bill, It 
would’ be good for not more than ten years. At the end of ‘ten 
years, the industry will have to start paying taxes. Now that's 
the situation that Mr. Van Camp was talking about. He has had tax 
immunity for seven years, In that seven years tke iddustry has 
prospered and he is now able to pay taxes without any further im. 
munity. 

If a new industry wishes to come into American Samoa, and ask the 
Governor for exemptions including this Income Tax, if the Governor 
grants that exemption, the industry comes and prospers, or the in+ 
dustry comes and does not prosper and needs further assistance, 
then this Legislature will need to decide whether the Industrial 
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Incentive Act should be amended to provide further exemption from 
income tax, The point is, that the Industrial Incentive Act is a 
means by which an immunity from taxes may be granted to stimulate 
industry. What we're talking about here are the people whe are 
here, the industries who are here, the individuals should nay tax, 
He ought to supvort the Government, 

The point was made that if the Fono enacts this Tax Law, no one 
could go to Washington and protest about it, I suggest that the 
place to protest is right here in this Fono, the purpose of this 
Fono is to legislate on the tax, The Fono must decide whether the 
Tax Bill is a good one or a bad one, It should make that decision 
after listening to all those people who have an interest like we're 
doing right now. Once you have made you decision, however, I think 
it would be improper to run to Washington to protest or do anything 
else, because Washington will say you are responsible right here 
for enacting this legislation or not enacting it at your will, 

I appreciate the reference to acting as your Legislative Counsel 
such as I am to advice you because that is why I am here, “I will 
be happy to advice you at any time at all if you ask me. This is 
the Governor's recommendation, and of course you are free to modify 
it if you want to, and I'll help you there if you want to modify 
it. But. the important thing is that you indicate the kind of law 
that you want. And I have explained the basic elements of this 
law, They're very simole. If I were writing the law and you were 
telling me what I just told you, that you want a 2% tax on wages, a 
graduated income tax on higher salaries, 52% on corporations, and 
decide on the kind of law that your Governor reported.ss.cecenif you 
don't want that kind of a law, tell me and I'll redraft a new one, 

CHAIRMAN: Any member who has any question? 
Paogofie,. 

  

SENATOR PAOGOFI: This is a useful yet simple question. Mr. Lealaifua-— 
neva, supposing that we pass this Income Tax, What would your tax 
be, if you please? (translation 

  

MR. REID: That is a good question, Senator. If I know the proposed law 
I'd be able to tell you my tax, But I don't know what is in the 
law. JI have not seen the law. As Mr. Mike Kneubuhl stated yester-— 
day, there are only three copies of the Internal Revenue Code in 
American Samoa, So I have not seen the law. Nor do I know~ what 
kind of percentage would apnly to me, But I came before you in the 
interest of Samoa and its future. 

  

Let me explain further. If all of the Internal Revenue Code is in 
this Bill, I could tell you what my tax would be, Byt I will tell 
you this. All of you know that I have property in the United 
States where some of my relatives are living. I nay $465.00 in 
property tax to the County of Long Beach, This includes only the 
house and furniture, (translation 

SENATOR PAOGOFIE: Thank you very much, Phe Committee has heard that 
you commletely support the kind of tax about which I -questioned 
you. Fisansiatd on) 
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CHAIRMAN: Faiivae. 
  

SENATOR FAIIVAE: (in English) Mr, Reid, you just stated that you pay 
four hundred and some odd dollars to the City of Long Beach in pro- 
perty tax....ctate of California tax, for your propertv in Long 
Beach, May I ask you again....e.do you pay income tax -to° the 
Government of the United States? 

  

MR. REID: To answer your question, no. I do not’ pay Federal Income Tax, 
I pay only property tax. However, I am sure I would pay income tax 
if I were living in the United States. (translation) 

  

SENATOR FAIIVAE: Thank you, Another one......(not recorded on tape) 
  

CHAIRMAN: I have one, Mr. Peter Reid, Some of the reasons why you do 

not support this Bill is because of the- insufficient time: for the 
Legislature to study it. Secondly, it is because of the incom 
pleteness of the Bill. This Bill here refers to the book here. 

  

NOTE: (The rest of the question and part of the answer is not 

recorded on the tape, ) 

MR. REID: The question to the point is why I object to the Bill. as. it 
stands, The way it is presented. 
Your honorable Committee, I object to Mr. Sigler interrupting me 

when I am not finished with my comments,~ He is telling - us that 
Puerto Rico passed a similar bill. Well, that's alright! If Puerto 
Rico passed it. perhaps they read it. But just because they passed 
a similar bill doesn't necessarily mean that we should fpass_ this 
Bill. J am sure nore of the Committee members read the whole law. 

  

I said before that ? do not like the quicky way with which this 
Bill is being pushed to you, It is said right here in the Newsweek 
that Mr, Mills, Chairman of the Congressional Ways and Means, says 

' that it will take them six months to consider and deliberate on the 

President's Administration Tax Bill. On the other hand, this Tax 
Bill is being presented to you by the Governor to be decided upon 
in the fifteen days of the Special Session, On top of that, ‘there 
are five bills to be discussed in those fifteen days. Also, you 

are asked to reserve three days for any emergency. (translation) 

CHAIRMAN: I have another question. Suppose a bill, similarly, is writ-— 
ten here in Samoa by the Legislature here, without referring to 
this Internal Revenue Code of 1954, but it amounts to the same fi- 

gure as is shown in this United States Revenue Code of 1954. What 
do you say to that? 

  

MR. REID: As I exnlained to your Committee before, if a bill is thought 
up and spawned for Samoa bv the Samoans, even if it includes that 
law as long as you understand completely what the Bill is, I will 
support it one hundred percent, I don't care how high my tax per- 
centage wili be. I will gladly pay it. But what I want to impress 
upon you is, do not pass this Bill as it will reflect on you and 
all of us. The Government wants you to enact this law before you 
understand it fully. (translation) 

Chee see 

   



CHAIRMAN: Anymore questions? .sccccescecevelALLVae, 
  

SENATOR FAIIVAE: (his own translation) Another one, Mr, Reid. During 
the last war we had an old word related to a situation that is 
normal in all parts; and the Committee is just about in that*com 
mitment right now, We don't know whether you wish what you wish us 
to do, First you want this law written by Samoa and you completely 
want us to write this law, but requested some experts from Washing- 
ton D, €. to come down and write it for us. And also you approve 
about the new industries because unemployment is s® larre in Samoa, 
Then in the conclusion of your speech or your statement you are 
against new industry because of lack of space. We want to find out 
just where you, what you really mean whether you mean the’ Committee 
and the Senate to go ahead with the writing of a new law, or what. 

  

MR. REID: I'm sorry I wasn't clear enough for the benefit*of the Sena=+ 
tor, But what I said was that a tax bill should be spawned by Sa-— 
moans right here, although we should bring tax lawyers and experts 
to help us and draft a bill. We don't know how to draft a bill in 

the legal language. 

  

I didn't say, as you commented, not to bring new industries to Sa- 
MOA. I explained before that I want new industries in Samoa to 
help cur economy, Without new industries we will have nothing to 

absorb the generations of Samoa, 

CHAIRMAN: Unless you have another’comment, Mr. Peter Reid, on behalf of 
the Committee I wish to thank you for the information you have 
given us. Every consideration will be given to the thought you 

have brought before this Committee, 

  

MR. REID: Thank you very much, Mr, Chairman and the honorable Commite 
tee, I am sorry I took so long to explain my sentiments toward 

this Bill. Good luck! 

  

CHAIRMAN: The next witness is Mr. Buck Huff. 
  

Mr. Buck Huff, whom do you represent? 

MR. HUFF: I represent myself, sir. 
  

  

CHAIRMAN: Go ahead and proceed. 

MR. HUFF: Mr. Chairman, my testimony is limited to the section of this 

Bill referred to as the tax on wages. 
  

I just like to go on record, Mr. Chairman, saying that the section 
on wages here is not completely up to present a good testimony, I 
don't believe that the Income Tax Laws for the United States of Am- 
erica could be used to apply to the personal inceme taxes earned in 

fmerican Samoa, 

CHAIRMAN: Will you please speak a little louder? 
  

  

MR. HUFF: Most of us are aware that over the’ past two years we have had 
- 
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a group down here to look into the wages, in view of the Minimum 
Wage Federal Law which applied to the United States. A similar 
procedure might be used, using the United States Income Tax Laws as 
a basis, but the gradual wage scale up to the current United States 
tax law. Using it gradually rather than putting it into effect as 
it is now, Bring it into effect over a period of years on a per- 

centage basis. 

This is the basis of my being here, Mr. Chairman......is just to 
make this suggestion to you and the Legislature on my own behalf. 
Right now I have resided in American Samoa more than eight years: 

I'm married to a girl who was born here in American Samoa, and I, 
too, have paid my five dollars a year, I do belfiave that there 
should be a personal income tax in American Samoa, But I do not 
believe American Samoa is ready for a tax which is comparable to 

that of the United States law. 

I would like to see the Income Tax Law that is pronosed here pre- 
sented in its entiretv, There are so many people who do not under- 
stand the income tax and I'm one of them. I think that it would be 
more than fair to present this section written un so that everyone 
could understand it.....just what the Bill means, 

I believe that is the extent of my statement, Thank you Mr. Chair-— 
man. 

CHAIRMAN: <Any question? 
  

SENATOR FAITIVAE: In other words you favor income tax vrovided it is 
done gradually like the wage scale? 
  

MR. HUFF: Yes, Mr. Hunkin, I believe the reason the wage committee did 
not enforce the Federal minimum hour wage here, but is enforced in 
the United States, is because American Samoa is just starting to 
become of age, I believe this is also true with reference to in- 

come and to several other sections of this Bill. 

  

CHAIRMAN: Any more questions? 
  

Have you any further information you want to put before this Com 

mittee? 

MR, HUFF: That's about it, Mr. Chairman, 
  

CHAIRMAN: I wish to thank you very much on behalf of this Committee. 
  

I will promise you we'll give due consideration to your informa- 
tion, 

MR, HUFF; Thank you, Mr, Chairman and the Committee for allwoing me to 

appear this afternoon, 
  

¢ 

CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have no further witness for today, and there- 

fore we adjourn. Our hearing will now adjourn for the day. 
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FOURTH: DAY 
  

January 21, 1963 
  

MR. TAYLOR: May I sit down Mr, Chairman? 
  

CHAIRMAN: Please sit down, 
  

Our meeting will now come to order, May I ask for your full name, 
sir? 

MR. TAYLOR: My name is Reese Taylor. 
  

CHAIRMAN: Are you going to speak in behalf of the Coconut Processing 
Company? 

  

MR. TAYLOR: Well, what I would like to do, Mr. Chairman, is make a few 

remarks as Attorney for the Coconut Processing Corporation, and 
also as a practicing lawyer in California regarding this Income Tax 
Law that you are considering. | 

  

CHAIRMAN: You may continue, Mr. Taylor. 
  

  

MR. TAYLOR: First of all I'd like to point out two things. One, that 
I am making this statement at the specific request of the Chairman 
of this Committee, when he asked me to annear this morning and that 
it is my duty. Second, that as a representative of the Pacific Co- 
conut Processing Cornoration and also an attorney, what I'd like to 
do is to point out some of the questions that have been raised in 
mind about the nending legislation and try to give particular em- 
phasis on the effect that this legislstion may have on our Coconut 
Processing plant and other new businesses like us which are about 
to begin operation in American Samoa, 

Apparently the problems that are to be resclved by this new tax le- 
Bislation before you are twofold, The first problem anpears to be 
the fact that American Samoa cannot continue indefinitely being 
supported by subsidy from the United States Goverrment, which sub— 
sidies in turn comes from the pockets of the Mainland tax payers. 
As a result some form of fair, reasonable, and equitable local’ tax- 
ation must be enacted to make the Government of American Samoa, the 
development program planned here, self sufficient or at least sub- 
stantially so. 

The second problem essentially to be covered by the legislation be— 
fore you appears to be. the fact that on the other hand you do not 
want to stifle or suffocate new businesses that are already here 
and other potential industries that may come here; because these 
new business are undoubtedly going to be the primary foundation on 
which will be tmsed the increased standard of livine and expanded 
employment opnortunities needed to build a more prosperous anc sclf 

sufficient fmerican Samoa, 

With these two problems in mind it is then un to you, gentlemen, to 
determine whether or not the pending legislation before you can 
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cope with these problems. The negative annraisal I'd like to noint 
out as I am sure you gentlemen undoubtedly know is, the nower of 
the tax is probably the sinrle most imnortant~nower any govemment 
nossessés. Because wisely used it can atcomrlish: government justi- 
fied objectives in serving the peonle. But unwisely used it can, 
as has been said, it can become the nower to destrov, Consequently 
any tax measure should he subjected to the greatest and most finest 
scrutiny. Because once enacted, a source of revenue is created on 
which thereafter the government denends. And as a result of a tax 
measure, good or bad, is seldom if ever repealed: Therefore much 
study and consideration in a great deal of detail, it seems to me, 
is essential. Because once passed the tax legislation before you, 
at least in basic principle, will be with you for generations to 
come. With these general thoughts in mind, I'd like now to turn to 
some of the questions which have been raised in mind by the tax le- 
gislation you're considering, Some of these questions may have 
arisen in your minds. But in any event, certainly without »vre- 

tending to have all the answers the solution of each of these ques- 
tions, it seems to me, should be found before the enactment of this 
or any other tax legislation in American Samoa, 
From the economic standnoint first, let's consider some questions 
in that area, The first one of course which occurs to me is whe- 

ther or not this new tax law will discourage additional new busi- 

nesses from coming to American Samoa, Because although vresent ex~ 

emptions have been offered under the Industrial Incentive Act these 
can only be granted with the discretion of the Governor. And, 
while the present Governor is probably one of the finest you have 
ever had, a very outstanding one, we cannot he nositive or certain 
who the governor is going to be five years from now. Asa _ result, 
this is my first question: Will the tax law discourage additional 
businesses from coming to American Samoa. 
As an example, the new tax law contains a pvrovision for an export 

duty. This export law would vermit the imnosition of duty equal to 
the duty which would be imnosed on a nroduct coming from a foreien 
country. Why then would a comnany come to American Samoa to nro- 
cess goods and make manufacturer's products if they are to be 

treated in the same as if they were producing that product in a 
foreign country? 

The second question. Capital investment is absolutely essential 
for business once here to expand and to replace canital equinment. 
And what effect will this tax law have on needed funds for canital 
expansion? The third question. Personal income tax are imnosed by 

this legisletion; as it is essential for many businesses coming 
here to employ in many cases highly skilled technical peonle to 
come down here and act as pnlant management and as technical advi- 
sors for these new businesses? Will not this incentive, no perso- 
nal incone tax, at the present time seriously hamner the efforts of 
some company now here and ahout to come, from employing ton notched 

technical peonle? The fourth question: Isn't it sood business for 
a private enternrise in businesses located here to he left with the 

capital to exnand and create additional employment rather than have 

the government take that money away from private industry and have 
the government do this itself? 
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Turning now to a couple of politcal questions. First of tN Ge 
would like to ask whether or not‘you have considered the power 
given to the Governor by this pending legislation. Right now you 
have a wonderful Governor, and I hone he is here for a good long, 
long time. But such might not be the case, In which event ,it 
seems to me you should consider the nowers that have heen handed to 
the Governor by this legislation before you, Another political 
question, It is my understanding that your Constitution guarantees 
land ownership to the Samoan people and this is never to be taken 
away from them; and yet, do you realize that your tax legislation 
provides for the enforcement of tax lien in the event of a default 
or non—payment of taxes? Your Constitution guarantees land to be 
owned by Samoans, The tax legislation . before you provides for a 
tax lien, The legislation before you provides that if taxes are 
not paid, the Government can attach property... This raises a second 
question for me, If the Government can take land for nonpayment 
of tax, is this not in conflict with your Constitution? 

Now turning to some legal questions which have occured to me. The 
legislation before you.....eits cross reference refers to sections 
of the 1954 Internal Revenue Code, Have you seen these sections of 
the 1954 Code? A criminal penalty is imposed by this law. Have 
you seen the sections which that law was taken? In addition to the 
Code do you realize that since 1954 literally thousands of Internal 
Revenue regulations and Bureau of Treasury regulations have been 
handed down interpreting and regulating under the Code? And do you 
realize that all of these regulations as well as the Code itself 
are in fact made a part of your law? Another legal question, Have 
you thought of the problem of collecting this tax? Have you consi- 
déred the problems that will he created for the people of Samoa in 
trying to fill out an income tax return? Most. people in the United 
States need help in filling out their income tax returns and we 
have had the income tax for a good long time, “Have yon-:consi- 
dered the fact that the Governor is not required under this law to 
publish any of the laws or regulations which go together to make up 
this law before you. If these regulations are to be made a part of 
this tax law, you ought to consider it. And having thought of the 
problem that will be created in trying to educate the Samoan people 
to the payment of an income tax, all of the forms, and the know 
ladge of what constitutes a deduction, will it be necessary to make 
this law effective? 

These are just some of many questions which have occured to me, I 
have here the answers to these questions. But it seems to me that 
you should have the answers to these questions before adopting this 
or any substitute form of local taxation. What then is my recom— 
mendation? I don't feel you can answer all of these questions in a 
few days that are left of this Special Session, Yet, as a Mainland 
taxpayer if nothing else, some form of local taxation is coine to 
have to be adopted in the forseeable future, Asa consequence I 
would suggest that you people might hire independent tax counsel 
from the United States to study this law for you and with you, 
With the help of this tax counsel I think you will be able to fully 
appreciate the impact of the law’ before you and have a sufficient 
amount of time to really study all of its ramifications. 

wm 66. se  




